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ASSISSINATION OF CONGRESSMAN
LEO J. RYAN, NOVEMBER ]8, 1979

At approximately 7:20 p.m., the Modesto, California
Police Department officers were dispatched to the Motel Six,
722 Kansas Avenue, Room 106, Modesto, where People's Temple
membey gnd survivor of Jonestown, Guyana suicide, Michael
JosepEL;;okggl qpite male, born May 31, ngl, 5'9" tall, 155
pounds, residence L701 Concord, Modesto, had shot himself in
the head with a .38 caliber Smith & Wesson revolver, two inch
barrel, bearing serial number 979561.@[ ;\ PR -

Prokes had arranged with vaﬁgéﬁg'news media on March
12, 1979, a news conference to be held at the above location
at 7:00 p.m., on March 13, 1979. Prokes completed reading a
five page statement of prepared press release when he execused
himself and went into the bathroom, where he had apparently
secreted the above described weapon and placed a suicide note.
The note is attached herewith.\:i)
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Prokes immediately taken to Doctor's Hospital in
Modesto and was later pronounced dead at 10:44 p.nu\u)

Interview of news media present at Modesto Police
Department substantiated Proke's prior arrangement of press
conference and reading of five page statement. Prokes was
asked by a newsman, Edmond Kent Pierce, employed by KCRA TV,
Channel 3, Stockton, California, "Was Jimmy Jones responsible
for ordering the murders in Guyana?" At that point Prokes
execused himself to go to the bathroom and after about one
or two minute interval, they heard a shot ring out{g)

Prokes' brother, Thomas Prokes, perfectly described
the weapon, stating it had belonged to his brother for several
years and was obtained from unknown persons of the People's
Temple in San Francisco, California. Prokes' statement to the
press is attached. U)\\
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Prokes' Statement to t.l’ross ’ /
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t: CS
Why did Jonestown end the way it did? T believe at least a good part of that

answer can be found on the tape recording of the last hour of life in Jonestown.

Unfortunately, the tape has never been played publicly and is being kept locked up

22Dy either the Attorney General's office or the F.B.T. But.T don't find that

surprising in light of what an Amcvican Embassy officer told me was on that tape.

Last December at the Matthews Ridge Guest House (located about 40 miles from

I

s

Jonestown), a young man attached to the American Embassy named Charles English

o '
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(who 1s 27 years old and had spent one year in foreign service) described parts

288

of the tape recording to mysclf, Tim Carter and two reporters whose names 1 can't
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recall. Probably the most sipgniffcant thing he sald was that he thought the tape

=)
3 B
f?%» would never be played publicly because [t would be an embarrassment to the Unifted
[
States. He said it reveals that the people of Jonestown were not coerced into ( "
taking their lives, but rather the deaths resulted basically from a collective:
decision based upon the perception that the community was doomed and there was no
use to continue. English said that while he and a number of others were listening
to the tape in Georgetown, U.S. Ambassador John Burke came into the room and also
listened to it. When it was finished, Burke told those in the room, in no uncertain
terms, that they had better not breathe a word of what they heard. He then took
the tape into his poersonal custody.
Another official, the man who headed the Cuyancse end of thq investigation into
Jonestown, corroborated what English sald was on the tape. But be went even beyond
what English said. Skip Roberts (Guyann'g Crime Chief) told md in a privnte
conversation, the day before t left Guyana, that the tape showed solidarity of the
.
people of Jonestown. _Ho said he was deeply moved by what he heard. He said that
. if he were in Jonestown at the time of the deaths, he could see how' he would have
willingly died with the people, had he been part of the vommunigy. Moreover, he

sone
told me he belicved there was outside plan to destroy Jonestown.,

wyana's number two law

, but

This was no crackpot making, wild statements
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enforcement official, trained by academies in the U.S., who is highly respected and
has a reputation for being Incorruptible. But it's doubtful that he can admit
publicly the things he said to me in private. He may do it but it's a touchy
political issue. Guyana feels it can 111 afford to foend or embarrass the U.S.
while it has an outstanding 1.M.F. loan and {s secking additional aid. (English

of course would be risking hEgSitiogo admit what he told us about the tape and

Ambassador Burke.)

But if there is nothing to hide, then whocver has the tape should be willing
to make it public. 1t seems to me that a recording of the lasé hour of 1life for
over 900 people is extremely relevant and crucial for the public to hear. 1
have no doubt whatsoever that the recording was made {ntentionally. Tt wgs found
on the tape machine in the pavilion, where meetingség:gqnormally recorded and where
it was in full view of scores of people. Jones asked that all meetings be -
recorded and I have no doubt that the last meeting was any exception because I
believe he wanted to leave something that would prove why the people died.

An article in Rolling Stone magazine said it concisely: Tt stated, "The wass suicides
of history, Masada and Saipan, had occurred when a people were under siege and
surrounded by enemies. Jones and the people of Jonestown were no exception: for

" months they had been.harassed, persccuted, surrounded and besieged by shadow forces.
When the final attack was ifmminent and undeniable, they chose to die."

I believe the tape will corroborate this, and T am convinced that [ts contents
have been deliberately misrepresented to the press. Why is it being kept locked
up? Because its contents would help to reveal the truth about Jonestown, that's
why. The press should demand that the tape be made public. I'm not talking about
a transcript, either..becausc the Embassy officer (Chas. English) said a transcript
would not give an accurate portrayal of what was golng on-- there were too‘many

overlapping voices. Tn order to bhe properly evaluated and understood, the entire

50 minutes of the oripginal tape should be played to the press, unedited. and

5
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uncensored. (The Guyanese were provided a copy of the tape by American officials,
but it may not be the same onc Skip Roberts heard.)

It would take a lot of pressure for that tape to be played because I believe,
from the accounts I've been given, it would reveal too clearly something that the
government does n&t want to admit, and cannot admit-; that Jonestown represents ‘

a symbol of the massivo-inst1tutiona1 failure of this country to meet the needs of
its own citizens. Tt's no colncldence that most of the members of Peoples Temple
were black, when you consider that most of tﬁc inhabitants of the huge slums and
ghettoes in virtually cvery large city of America are black. They don't 1like
living in misery and if they could get out they would, but they aren't being
provided the opportunities they need to do so. That's why so many blacks joined
Peoples Temple-- it provided the opportunity to escape the misery of their lives
in the ghetto. Jim Jones jumped into the vacuum created by the failure of this
system to meet the needs of its black people. He then met those needs that had
been neglected and gave the credit to socialism. The U.S. Intelligence apparatus
would obviously feel duty-bound to stop him, particularly in 1ight of their history
and reputation for polng after progressive politeal and civil rights organizations.

Beyond the satisfaction of thefr material needs, people found dignity and
pride in the Temple that racism had previously denled them. But attempts to deny
Temple members their new found freedom--and to us 1t was freedom--still persisted
even after the move was made to another country. And that's why so many chose to
die in the end. It was a moral act of courage and commitment to thelr beliefs.
They were saying, "We're not golng to take anymore. We'll die by our own hand
rather than be destroyed or broken-up by the long arm of the oppressor."

What I'm saying-ls that the reason so many people died and took their children's
lives is because they believed their communfty--that they had built with their own
hands--was under slege by the United States government, which T agree was the case.

The State Dept. was well aware of the Temple's nepotiations to move to the Soviet
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Union in order to escape the threats to its security in Guyana. Undoubtedly the N

e

State Dept. and the CIA wanted to prevent a tremendous Soviet propaganda victory }/
based upon nearly 1000 Americans moving to the Soviet Union in quest.of the Human
Rights they had been denied in the U.S. But to what‘lengths was the State Dept.
prepared to go to discredit Jonestown? Would they sacrifice a congressman?
ﬁvidently. Otherwise, wh& did they allow Congressman Ryan to go to Jonestown when
they were told in a legal affadavit that there was arms there and they knew the

visit would be considered an act of provocation. Why did they allow it? ‘Because

the State Dept. wanted an incident. Well, they got 1t. I'm not even convinced

that they got more than they bargained for, since the affadavit also told of
suicide rchearaanls-- and warned the State Dept. that they should be taken serlous—
ly. Moreover, in a letter from Peoples Temple to the State Dept., 1t was stated \jk(
that Temple memberswould rather die than be harassed from continent to continent.
The State Dept. éurposo]y callthe bluff by sending Ryan; it was a deliberate act
of provocation.

I believe in the basic rightness of the 1ife and work that went on in Jones-
town, and I can't disassoctate myself from the people who died, nor do I want to.
They were beautiful people who cared about ecach other and who identified with all
people who suffer oppression and persecution around the world. ‘Jongstown functioned
on a high level of ethical behaviour and human devotion that you had to see and
experience in order to comprehend. The rights of the individual were respected and .
defended; sharing and concern for others was a requirement,  These things were 1ike
a code of the community. The people weren't brainwashed fanatics or cultists-- khe
Temple was not a cult., It was a political organizatlion that bullt .its own socialist
community, It might gv falr to say they were fanatical In onc sense: After moving
6000 miles to get away from racism and harassment, they weren't goiné to be pushed
around anymore. Maybe 1t sounds trite but they were saying hnsica]]y the sgme

thing as Patrick Henry, that [s, "Let us have our freedom, or we will die."
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because, among many other reasons, I was an informant when I first joined Peoples
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But the State Dept. and C.I.A. couldn't afford to let such a large group of

socialists from the United States find freedom In another land, So they harassed

us by sending their lackeys, through Tim Stoen, to Guyana and deliberately played

upon the paranoia thit exisﬁéin Jonestown, until they finally got what they wanted.
The truth about Jonestown is being covered up because our government agencies

were involved in its destruction up to their necks. I am convinced of this

Temple. I didn't }ema{h one, however, because 1 came to realize that the Temple. <; ﬂ/&\
was probably the only hope for the many people it was helping off the streets,

off of drugs, out of crime, and out of mental institutions, jails, and prisons,

I learned to identify.with these people until they became my brothers and sisters
and then T understood what 1t meant to be black and old and poor in this soclety--
the hell of living cveryday in fear.

The people of Jonestown dicd--as one suiclde note said-- because they weren't
allowed to 1live in peace. They died because they didn't want to be left with no
choice but to come back to live in the rat-infested ghettoes of America. They
died for all those who suffer oppression. 1 refuse to let my black brothers and

sisters and others in Jonestown, dic in vain.
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Photostatic copies of additional papers in the
possession of Prokes at the press conference, which were
apparently distributed to the various news media present,
attached. .
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In October of 1972 1 called Jim Jones' house at the number listed in Redwood

Valley to try to seg up an interview with him for the news. T talked with a \
woman, a senifor named Ester Mueller, who Jones had taken in. T told her of my
interest and she suggested I call the S.F. Temple where Jones was at that time.

\ ) I called but was told to call back on the weekend. A few days later I received

a call at my office from a man who asked if T would meet with him to discuss the

Peoples Temple. I found the request very curious; T said o.k. and we met the

next day in a Stockton restaurant. The man told me his name was Gary Jackson.

I asked him what he did and he sald that he worked for the government, but T

couldn't get him to be more specific. He asked what prompted my interest in
Peoples &emple. I asked him how he knew that I was interested in the Temple.
He paused for a few moments, then said something to the effect-- "There are way \\Jk(\
if'you think about it." The answer was obvious-- Jones' phone was tapped. 1
told him that a series of articles in the S.F., Examiner prompted my interest.

I sald I wanted. to look into some of the thiﬁgs the articles said about Jones and
the Temple, and if T found them to be true, T was planning to do an'exposg for
our TV news program., Jackson (somehow T doubt that was his real name) said there
was a lot more to the Temple than what the Examiner wrote. He said it was a
revolutionary organization led by a dangerous man, bent on destroying our system
of government. He talked to me a while longer, telling me various things Jones

had supposedly said and done, then he made a proposal. He sald if I could be

successful at Joining the Tewple full timeé as a staff member and report regularly

on what was going on inside the organization, he would arrange for me to be paid

$200 a week. o TS

.

In thinking back upon it, T must have been checked=out and congidered to
be a good prospect since T had been a dedicated Christian church-goer, attended
college in conservative Orange County, good student with no Involvement In any

kind of organization or activity that could be considered "questionable." T told

1)
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:he Temple

I arranged to attend a service at which I heard Jones preach.

. Temple.

" information. I was starting to.identify with the problems and sufferings of the

! P

the man that I found his offer intriguing but that I first wanted to pay a visit
to the Temple. He agreed, saying I wouldn't be able to join on the first visit
anyway. But he said I wouldn't be able to get a good picture of the organization
untilti was inside it, because the: public meetings were only so much posturing.

‘ Later, I got to
talk with him privately. I was surprised to Bear him speak so openly against the
system in my presence, particularly so soon after the negative publicity about him.
But I was fascinated by his ministry and I thought it would make great stuff for

I talked with Jones

a book or screenplay, which I thought I might like to write.

for at least two hours. I asked him if he needed more staff. He said he could

use as many as were willing to work voluntarily with the Temple providing only ’
1iving expenses. I told him it was something I wanted to give serious thought \/\l
to, and he said he would be thrilled to have me.

Jackson called me a couple of days later and I told him I was going to quit
my job and accept his offer. I didn't tell him I wanted to write a book about the
Arrangements were made for me to be paid (the payments were left for me
at various predesignated locations, always in the form of cash enclosed in plain
white envelopes.) My reports were made verbally (from pay phones at which I was
called) because it was too risky to write anything, as there was a lot of suspicion in
(as one might imagine) of a reporter who quit his rather prestigious job as a
bureau chief to join an organization that didn't pay any salaries.

As time passed, I gradually began to feel conflict over my role as an infor-

mant, even though I wasn't providing what one might call valuable or sensitive

warious ones, : .

members. As I observed troubles being resolved by the Templi's program, the
conflict I was feeling turned to guilt. I had been watching Jones for sometime, as
closely as possible without drawing attention to myself. His gchedule was unbeliev-

able. He was up at all hours calling people on the phone, consulting, reading
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reports, and staying in touch with every phase of the organization. 1t was

obvious he worked harder than anyone-- but I questioned his motives. Personally,

I didn't 1like the man after the first few months I was in the Temple. But I recog-
nized that it was for reasons that were subjective and which I didn't want to
affect my judgment of his character. One thing I wag notlcing was that he was
almost always the first to notice someone's need and point it out-- a senior in

a packed auditorium without a chair, for example, or &i:gg;ggg iﬁu«t someone's
health who lived alone. He was always dealing with needs and often ones that

weren't that obvious ta others. He seemed unusally scensitlve. Everytime T saw

him he was expressing concern;or dofng something for someone or asking that it be
done. But he didn't leave it at that. He was keen on following-up on whether
the thing he had asked be done for somcone, was actually carried out. Still, Ln<: \/\\
view of all this, I iiﬂﬂlf give him the benefit of the doubt, T had to be sure
about him. |

One day I had taken some letters to his apartment in the S.F. Temple just as
he was coming out the door. He was late for an appointment, so he told me to put
the letter on a table inside. He left and then I went out. 1 started back to my
office and then changed my mind and went downstairs to get a drink from the water
fountain. Down the hall 1 noticed Jones had stopped and watched for a moment as
an elderly w&man moved slowly up another staircase. Jones didn't see me as he was
facing the other way, and there was no one elsc around. Even though he was late
for his appointment, he was poing to take "another five minutes ‘to help that woman
up the long £light of stalrs (She could ﬂot have scen Jones as her back was to him,)
He went up and began n%sist{nu her and then T intervened and told him to go ahead
to his appointment. %hat act of kindness did it for me. T had becpme virtually
convinced of Jones' sincerity. T had finally scen him do something in private that
I had suspected he only did in public or when others were around to see i:.‘I

became even more convinced of his basic integrity on subsequent occasions in which

. -
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I observed his actions--for example, toward animals--when he was unaware that 1
(or anyone for that matter) was around.

But that first occasion was enough for me. 1 could no longer justify inform-
ing on Jones and his organization. During my next contact, I told Jackson what
I thought of Jones and he desperately tried to convince me T was wrong. 1T told
him I had to act according to what I had scen and experienced, and my conscience
simply wouldn't allow me to continue selling information that might be used
against an organization 1 believed in. 1 told him that even though I didn't
particularly care for Jones and 1 didn't agree with some ways in which his organ- \J
ization was run, I felt it was making tremendous achievements in terms of human
rehabilitation and improvement in the quality of pcoples lives and character.
He asked me what I planned to do. T told him 1 was going to stay with the Temple
ané possibly write a book about it. He urged me not to tell Jones abo;t him and
I told him I saw no reason why I should do that unless 1 suspected someone else

was taking my place.
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Jonestown had nothing to hide. Most of its visitors went there unannounced.
The project was talked about far and wide In Cuyana and, thus, anyone who had
heard about it would incvitably drop in if they were anywhere in the area. Often

we had visitors almost everyday of the week. Some non-hostile relatives came to

spend time with members of thelr family, and others were scheduled to come, includ-

" ing my own mother and brother. But the positive testimonies about Jonestown from

such persons were not enough to halt the organized efforts of those determined to
destroy Jonestown., Neither were’the visits of the President of the National
Newspaper Publishers Association (the "Black Press of America"), Dr. Carlton
Goodlett, or the former Methodist superintendent from the Bay Area, the Rev. Dr.
John Moore, who found "every aspect of the work and 1life...impressive.'" Dr.
Goodlett wrote in the Jomestown guestbook, "I have 1lived today in the future.".
But, unfortunately, the black press is not the white press, and we realized some-
thing more had to be done to get the harassers off our back. Thus, a request was
made to‘the United Natlons to send a team to Jonestown. But our communication
received a negative reply (sce letter).

At that point we were left with 1ittle choice but to take a chance and let
the same press in which had carried on a relentless attack against the Temple.
(Feelers had already gone out to Bill Moyers, David Wolper Productions, and a
number of other journalists and filmmakers, without success.) Finally, an agree-
ment was reached to allow in one of the Temple's biggest press enemies-- the S.F.
Examiner. But for some strange rcason (which will never be revealed by the paper),
the Examiner decided t5 back out of 1t at the last minute. What had happened?
Were they afraid their man wasn't prejudiced enough against the Temple or that he
might get there and discover that he couldn't do a decent smear jObz. It is just
a bit incredible that after all the clamoring about the goings on in‘Peop]es Temple,
the Examiner decided 1t would stick with second-hand reports and fnnuendo f;om

such sources as Tim Stoen's lackeys. The Examiner didn't want to take the chance

-~
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that it would not be able to confirm its yellow headlines of the past because it

would hurt its credibility and, more importantly, it would mean fewer bucks from

IS

the sale of other hcadlines in the future. Afterall, the Examiner created some
of its most sensational banner headlines using the Temple.

One got the fecling, in Jonestown, of being backed up agains. the wall-- not
But when Congressman Ryan--whose May, 1978 letter
to us declared his sympathy for Mr, Tim Stocn-—nnnpunced his intentions to come,
with media, the feeling of being cntrapped turned to belief-- it had to be a set
up. Paranoia? I doubt it, but even if it was, the key question in all this is--
who created 1t? Who tapped the Temple's phones in California? Who was blackTail- \}
ing Dennis Banks to get at us? Who was putting up all the money for the Stoen-
Mazor operations? Does Joseph Mazor now deny that when he came to Jonestown last
year he told us that he was hired to come there months earlier with sophisticated
arms and mercenaries on a mission to "get the children out" and that if he had to
wipe out hundreds of adults in the process, he was prepared to do that. But the
plan was abandoned, he sald, hecause he saw no cvidence-=-such as gun towers, barbed
wire and armed patrols, which he was told exlsted--that anyone was being held
against their will. (A Ukiah Dafly Journal article or editorial once mentioned
a "concerned relative's" deslre to use mercenaries to get people out of Jonestown.)
Was that venture what turned Mazor against Tim Stoen-- because Stoen had lied to .
(Both during and after Mazor's subsequent visit to Jonestown,

him about Jonestown?

he said, on at least two occasions, "I hate your polities, but I love what you'rea‘ 2%-
e

If there wasn't a conspiracy to destroy Jonestown, why did Mazor-i!EVﬁonéZ
g bullet proof vest and offer to train the community's security personnel

I Qf wea 21 R
I believe %Im gtoen was a E%R operative, if not from the beginning, then \

certainly long before the cnd. Where was the money coming from to keep him on

doing here.")

the Temple's case full-time with an office, to hire a private detective (Mazor)
and a prominent S.F. public relatfons flrm (decry, Russom, & Leeper) to work

againét the Temple. Where was the monev comlng from to send relatives and attor-
. !
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neys to Guyana and put them up In the best hotels while they did their dlrty work?

2

There was too much money behind Tim Stoen. And why did he suddenly decide he

wanted his wife's son back, who he knew was fathered by Jim Jones-- a fact both he,

_(Stoen) and she ackndw]edged publicly and privately in the Temple. Moreover, Jones

had no reason for claiming the child from virtually the time of his’ birth, if the
child was not in fact Jones'. But suddenly Grace and Tim Stoen were back together
again, in public, acting as if they were reconciled, after 1ite£nlly hating each
other for years (since 1972, in fact, when I lived with them near Redwobd Valley)
and during a period when Grace was living with another man. But Stoen's announced

goal was the destruction of Jim Jones and the Temple. He realized the child was a

point of vulnerability because he knew Jones wouldn't give him up even if a court (/E}\\

directed him to do so. Stoen knew he had an advantage, being the husband of the
child's mother, and he also knew {t would be virtually impossible to prove he was
not the father since he and Jones had the same blood type.  But when the Guyana
courts failed to make a decisfion {n the case, Stoen applied more pressure on
another front. Using the so-called "Concerned Relatives", Stoen kept the pressure
on by hitting again at what he knew to be Jones' most vulnerable area-- his loyalty
to his members. He promised never to give up anyone who didn't want to leave.

So all these "concerned relatives" show ub in Guyana with Congressman Ryan

(supposedly on separate missions)-- some of whom were so concerned that they hadn't

bothered to even call or write their Temple reclatives in years. They suddenly show
up and discover that all of their relatives in Jonestown arc happy and don't want
to leave. But unfortunately, In the process, about 20 persons [ e S
oot did want to leave, triggering the tragic incidents that Stoen and the forces

backing him were hoping for. And now Stoen has quloetly dlsnpponrcd‘from the scene.
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For clarification: I am convinced beyond all doubt that there was no conspiracy

from within Peoples Temple to kill Con. Leo Ryan. Tim Carter was sent to the States
to deliver some legal documents. While he was there, Terri Buford.left the Temple
and said she was going underground to get information about the conspiracy against
the Teﬁple. Jones and others around him (i.e., Harriét Tropp, Carolyn Layton, &
Maria Katsaris) doubted that her real intention was to get information for the
Temple. They thought her letter was a smokescreen for getting out altogether.
According to Harriet Tropp, Jones instructed her to.give a message to S.F. to have
Carter infiltrate the "Concerned Relatives' to see what he could find out about
Buford. That was Carter's mission. It was already known that Ryan was planning
to come to Jonestown. When Carter returned to the project, he told Jones that Stoen &
the "Concerned Relatives'" were counting on an overrcaction on the part of Jones and the

Temple to Ryan's visit. TFrom that point on, Jones desperately tried to keep Ryan

from coming in. Jones feared that Ryan was coming to deliberately provoke an

incident and that he was bringing the media to record it. WherxalXxakkewprxxfaiisd
xx One thing in particular that added credence to Jones' and others fears was that
Ryan showed up totally unannounced at the Temple's Georgetown headquarters late one
night (just prior to flying out to the project). Then the next day at a press
conference, it appeared evident that he was attempting to set the stage for him the
xxipxxaxdannrgaun type of investigation he would seek to make into Jonestown. He
said he was concerned about a church that had no signs of religion at 1ts headquarters.
He also made deprecating remarks about members of the Georgetown household because
they appeared to be stand-offish. After Ryan's press conference, Jones and his
staff were convinced that the community was in for a rough time with Ryan. Thgn
Ryan announced that he'was coming in, welcome or not, with the media., That was

the worst thing he could have said. Tt came across as a virtual threat, made by an

arrogant white person representing the American mxxahi "establishment" which had failed

_the blacks and the poor who--for that voryvrehson—-were attempting to build a new
#lz /{m/ fprlr{/ :

1life where as an opportunity to do so. Ryan's actions only- served to confirm
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the suspicion that he was coming to discredit Jonestown ¥ by provoking an incident

f ]

which, 1f it didn't serve sp to pre-empt the planned move to the Soviet Union, at
least would lessen or eim eliminate the propaganda value for the Soviets. (The State
Dept., was well aware of the Temple's plans to move and that Sharon Amos was meeting
regularly at the Sovict Embassy. The American Embaséy called the Temple's G/town
headquarters after the first two meetings or so and asked why were we visiting ,

the Soviet Embassy, Deborah Blakey who later defected also informed the American
Embassy and the State Dept, of the Temple's ploans.)

" A final effort to prevent Ryan's visit wazxmadexfakiewing came via instructions

from Jones to block the runway at Port Kaituma so that his plane couldn't land.
The instructions couldn't be carried out, however, because members of the Guyana \\J )
Defense Force were at the airstrip xepaxim repairing an airplane.xmd It was felt \
by Johnny Jones and Jim McElvane that the GDF would have interfered with any attempt
to prevent a Guyana Airways plane from landing. #f£tmx So the plane landed, and
after much discussion, it was decided that it would be better to let Ryan come in
than to have him ooéif;u{ to the entrance of the project with the medlia and create

a scene for the benefit of the cameras. S8saxRx Thus, kyan and his aide were allowed
in and, later, Jones succumbed to the pressurce to allow the media in also. The

rest is history.

I don't believe the knife attack on Ryan in Jonestown was ordered. Ryan had

announced that he was still going to give a favorable report on the community even
after the 20 or so people chose to leave. 'The individual who attacked Ryan was a
machismo-type ex-Navy man. Some of the young guys he worked with in Georgetown
would make fun of him because he was always trying to outdo the others in their work,
such as loading the Témple truck and boat. Also, this man admitted.during a

erxhxh catharsis meeting that he fantasized being a git-man. 1 believe this man,

Don Sly, was acting on his own,
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I don't know how the final attack at the airport came about. But I do remember
hearing Jones say, following Ryan's departure (rom Jonestown, something to the
effect that the 1lid was off or he didn't sce how he could keep the 1id on any

longer. (I took ki this statement to be in refercnce to those who always wanted

. to answer the Temple's'brob]ems with violence.)

(W
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When speaking during a service in one of the California Temples, Jones would
usually trace the oppression of blacks and other minoritles to current times. It

was almost like a history lesson. He would give long and specific accounts of how

b}acks, particularly, have been victimized by racism'and capitalist exploitation.
He would rattle off relevant statlsties and exnmpfes fn meticulous detail, For
many blacks who came with no cducation to speak of, often blaming themselves for
conditions §hey didn't understand, having little sense of self-worth and actually
feeling inferior becausc they had been beat down by white standards and white
institutions for so long-- for them, Jones was a hell of an eye-opening experience.
It wasn't brainwashing that Jones was engaged in-- it was more like deprogramming. LAA
Jones was eduéatiqg'and the effect ‘was theraputlic for thousands who heard him

and whose lives were In a state of confusion from feeling imprisoned in a society
they were told'wns frees dle Tiberated many minds out of thelr confused states by
demonstrating why there are huge phettoes in every large city of America and why
those ghettoes are populated mostly by blacks. He laid the blame squarely at the
feet of white racism and a socio-cconomic system that clearly puts profit motives
above human values, resulting in the lack of opportunity necessary for blacks to
enter the mainstream of Amecrican ;ife. This was not a demagoglc approach Jones

was taking, either. HMHe had too much of a grasp of his subject; he was too concerned

about minute details-- details that a demagogie need not bother with in order to
achieve his objectives. Not that cemotion wasn't involved-- 1t was. But it was
aroused by the sheer logic of his presentations which were backed up by an
impressive array of facts, statistics and documentation gathered from a massive
amount of reading. '

There was no way anyone could dispute what Jones sald about the soclal fl1ls
of the society and how blacks were the victims. Others, far less progressive than

he, were saying the same things., 1t was Jones' lueldness that made him effective-—-

what he said made scense. When he would spend hours attempting to show how the system
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was to blame for the conditlions of blacks in the U.S., he was convincing. He
became even more convincing when the government, inspite of itself, gave credibil-
ity to his thesis. Tor example, In 1968 the National Advisory Commission on

Civil Disorders, a bi-partisan committee formed by the Johnson Administration,
concluded its report with a seering indictment of our system, which declgred,
"This nation is moving toward two societles, one black, one white-~separate and
unequal." It put the basic blame on "white racism" which it said was created,
maintained, and condoned by white institutions. Here was a respected commission,
made up of respected public leaders who were charged by the President with determin-
ing the root causes of civil disorder, and it laid-thc blame right where it belonged.
Not surprisingly, however, its recommendations for remedying the situation were

arg

not carried out and thus QPfgti]] left with conditions akin to urban apartheid

and the danger of blacks taking to the streets agaln, as moderate voices (such

as Vernon Jordan and Benjamin look) warn us. The American system continues to

fail its black citizens, and not from any lack of prompting by black leaders.

The significant thing is that it is this failure that allowed Jim Jones--no matter

what perception one mipght have of him--to do what he did with Peoples Temple.

There is no getting around it-- Jones jumped into the vacuum created by this

wel
system's failure to meet the nceds of its people. And that msngi the key lesson

to be learned from Jonestown.

W
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Healings and Power

It is with reluctance that 1 discuss the healing aspect of Jones' ministry
because it will doubtless take away from the credibility of things I say about
other arcas, at least in some people's minds. Flrst of all, some don't believe
in the paranormal at all and will automatically use this to discredit other items
they choose not to believe. While there are those who believe in its possibili-
ties, they've been so prejudiced by news stories portraying Jones in the worst

_possible light that they won't allow themselves to be open to this aspect. Thus,

I'm left with appealing to perhaps a few persons who can realize that I have nothing
to gain by getting into this arca. 1'm doing so because I don't want to be \/{
accused of avoiding it; moreover, I want tp tell what I know to be the truth. &\ }
The last impression I would want to give anyonc was that Jones was some superhuman
being because he had tﬂé ability to heal. On the contrary, he was only too
human. But somehow he was able to utilize a dimension of the mind that most
people haven't tapped.
There were times when Jones would request that everyone in the particular
service he was conducting, who had some form of crippling afflfction, form a line.
Usually hundreds of people would respond on such occasions. Tt wasn't only
people who were crippled in some way who got in 1ine, however. People with all
kinds of physical problems and infirmities--thinking it might be thelr only
chance--also got in line.
The healing session was usually the last part of the service, coming after
Jones had spoken anywhere from two to four hours. But when he -called for people
to line up for healing, it would usually take at least several hours more to get
through the line because he worked with each person individually. After 1t was
over, virtually every person safd they had recelved some measure of‘rcljcf, if not
total healing., Tt was too much to be denied even by the most hnrdcged skeptic.
Some of 1t was no doubt psychosomatie (which Jones said himselfa—— but not ;11=of

it. Onec could observe actual physical transformations take place with hands or
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fingers crippled up with arthritis, for example. Elderly. persons who were
familiar to everyone and who for months and somctlimes years had moved painfully
slow, suddénly walked at a more brisk pace after Jones had attended to them.
There can be no question that Jones posgsessed a phenomenal ability to heal,
Normally, he would call people out from the pulpit, one-by-one, for healing.
But on those infrequent occasions that he allowed people to gét in line, the
visible results would convince the most cynical observer. Also, Tim Carter and
Laurie Efrein were among those who handled hundreds of letters a month contain-
ing expressions of gratitude and testimony from persons who sald they were healed
through Jones. K\\\“/\j
" The significance of all this to me, ‘however, is not that Jones could heal,
but rather that if he had wanted power in terms of gaining the largest number of
worshippers and raising the maximum amount of money, he knew that all he had to
do was limit his ministry to healling. Thlsu?gyeﬁg%; those who have accused Jones
of being power-hungry arc misguided. He could have had hundreds of thousands of
followers and raised many more millions of dollars than he did, because the vast
majority came to Jones' services to pot healed, not to hear his social-political
message., If he had just‘stuck to healing alone, he could have had tens of
thousands of people in idolatrous worship of him, and he knew it. But his main
thrust wasApolitics and the struggle for civil rights and soclal justice, and when
he got into it, most of the healing crowd was turned off. His message was what
kept people from returning, but he kept on with it knowing full®well the effect it

was having. He would often say, "If T would just keep my mouth shut and stick to

healing, I could pack out the largest auditoriums."

People didn't want to hear Jones' message because it required something of them.
It made them feel responsible to do something ahnukxghuxkhinggxghryxwurn to help
improve or correct the condlitions they were hearing about. Thv; didn't want to hear

héa_message because 1t upset their lives by pricking thelr consciences, particularly

«

-24




o e .

those who were living rather well off and were looking for ways to feel good about

themselves. ut they came to the wrong place to feel good because Jones always
W/ '

spoke aboutVinequities and the myriad injustices that created them. He spoke in a

manner that compelled people to face themselves in terms of viewing their lives

. in relation to such a world (populated by "have'" and "have-not" nations and peoples).

the Temple. The only thing they understood about equality was that it meant

That's no doubt why few people of means (or those who aspired to it) stayed with \/&/

sacrifice-- something they were not prepared to do.
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+ Misc. Reflections

If you can believe anything anyone says about Jonestown, you can belleve
this: For .an 1ntegra£cd community, populated by a virtual cross-section of the
human race, it was the most racially harmonious I've ever seen or heard about.
It's value system was different. Tt was based on a code of consideration,
respect and concern for people, and the progress being made along these lines was
remarkable considering the number of so-called misfits and outcasts that were there.
The children were learning how to share and to be concerned as much about‘the

welfare of others as they were about their own welfare.

~

The vast majority of the pcople (well over 90% I would estimate) loved Jones \J>0

town, and there was a tremendous will for it to succeed, against‘all the odds.

And it was succeeding. It was an incredibly productive and creat&ve community
that was viewed as a co-oﬁurative model by virtually everyone who visited. Not
that it was without faults; however, fts bad polnts were nothing compared to the
way it was portrayed by those who left the Temple-- individuals who simply did

not like living in the jungle under an extremely structured program, most of which
was essential in dealing with the various types of people there,

It 1is importa;t to realize that Jonestown had ex-cons, former drug addicts,
individuals who were classificd as social deviants, youth who came or were brought
to thg Temple as emotionally disturbed, maladjusted, and hyper-active, (not to
mention those who were physically handicapped and mentally retarded)-- you name it
‘and they were there. Why did they end up .in Peoples Temple? Obviously, because
U.S. society and its institutions had failed them. With these types of persons
there had to be a tight structure. Sure there were some excesses, but nothing like
the fabrications and cxaggérations made up by those who decided to leave because
they considered it too much of a sacrifice to make. (The vast majoéity of them-
were selfish whites.) They had to justify to themselves why they were leaving,

in order to be able to live with their consclences. That's why they made Jonestown

out to be something ft was not. Well, it may not have been paradise to them, but

it was paradise to those who suflfered the day-to-day struggle of 1ife in Amerfica’s slums,
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Misc, reflections

All kinds of people came to Peoples Temple and with every kind of problem. -
For many it was thelr last resort. Seeing thélir problems made my worst ones seem
petty. T became conscience-stricken and, realizing there was nothing more worth-
while that I could do with my 1ife, T deelded to stay on Indefinitely.  Somchow,
as difficult as it may be to belleve, T don't regret that decision. The experlence
made me a realist about life and about people. It gave me as much insight into
myself as I had the courage to face. (T know the same 1s true of others, as T
have heard different. oncs make similar statements). Beyond that, it gave me about
as accﬁrate a picture as a white person can hope to get of what it means to be
black iﬁ America, ,Tt also gave me a unique perspective and insight into the nature
of the American system, and how that system functions.

Except for the first few months in the Temple, I never really liked Jim Jones.
I guess it was his authority that bothered me, although T often saw the necessity
for it. 1T recognize that my dislike for him stems from feelings that are purely
subjective and which T don't want to color my portrayal of him. One thing about
the man that T had to respect was that he did practice what he preached. Despite
how some have portrayed him, he really didn't live above the people. (Maybe he
did in minor ways but he 51wnys had a very modest 1ifestyle, even in the U.S8.)
In Jonestown, he spent most of his time in his quarters which coqsisted of one,
approximatel} 12' x 18' rﬁom. Basically the same thing was true of him in San
Francisco where he lived in a small apartment inside the Temples .And, in fairness,

I know that the vast majority of Temple members did not feel the dislike for Jones

that I felt. Lt
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Why was the movéfhade? Perhaps the answer s best stated by former Methodist
District Superintendent, Dr. John Moore, who now pastors his own church-- First
Methodist of Reno, Nevada. Rev. Moore had two daughters in the Temple, and he

and his wife, Barbara, visited them in Guyana. He was familiar with xhex¥smpiex

" Jim Jones, the Temple, its programs, and a number of its members. In a statement

to the HOuse Committee on International Affairs, Rev. Moore wrote--

"The people went to Jonestown with hope, hope which grew out
of a loss of hope in the U.S. There can be no understanding of
movements such as Peoples Temple and Jonestown apart from this
loss of hope. They migrated, because they had lost hope in any
commitment of the American people or the Congress to end
racial discrimination and injustice. They had lost hope in the
people and the legislatures to deal justly and humanely with the
poor. ...Older people went to Jonestown hoping to become free
of purse snatchings, muggings, and the harshness of the urban
scene, Some young people hoped to learn new skills, or to become
free from pressures of peers in the crime and drug scencs.

People went to Jonestown to find freedom from the indignity our
society heaps upon the poor. They went with hope for a simple,
quiet life, ...They saw themselves leaving a materialistic soclety
where thihgs are valued more than.people. Many went as“pioneers

to create a new community in the jungle. Still others saw in
Jonestown a vision of a new soclety, a wave of the futu;e." ‘

It's interesting that Rev, Moorc says the people went to Jonestown to escape

- indignity. The President of the Southern Christian Leadership kharxmmxxmexxRax

Conference, Rev, Joseph Lowery, has never met Rev. Moore, but came up with the

same assessment after doing his own investigation. Rev. Lowery went to Guyana in

«
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the aftermath of the tragedy out of concern that Jonestown represented a failure
of American churches to meet the needs of the "hopeless." After visiting the
project and interviewing a number of survivors, he concluded that it was "dignity-
creating programs" that drew the people to Guyana, and he expressed surprise at the
"incredible progress” Temple members had made In developing the project.

It is true, the Temple had lost all hope and lalth In America. Jones saw
no hope for changing the basic profit-greed system. Capitalism was too entrenched,
there was no strong sociallist movement, and the working-class consciousness was
ﬁisdirected. Additionally, in light of what was happening to other progressive
groups and organizations, Jones knew that Peoples Temple would come under increas- LAM
ing scrutiny and harassment, particularly in view of the way the Temple was
operated.. Its activism brought too much notoriety. And already the Temple had
suffered damaging publicity; alrecady the phones had been tapped; already the San
Francisco headquarters had been destroyed by arson; and already a number of persons
had left who had shown themselves to be active encmies. It was obvious to Jones
that his organization would not be allowed to survive in the U.S. as a soclalist
entity. He saw no choice but to huild an alternative community in another country.

Jones didn't think it would be possible to move everyone en masse to the
Soviet Union, which he would have preferred doing particularly for reasons of
collective security and protection from U.S.-based enemfes. The information that
he was given from persons supposedly knowledgeable about Soviet affalrs was that
the Soviets would not take [n such a large group directly from the U.S. Thus,
Jones concluded that he would have to establish In some other country flrst, and

Guyana was it.
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In 1975, a push toward communal

The Redwood Valley

1iving communally,

Liv' & Lifestyle ‘ ‘10

Temple already had most of the members In that drea of the state

as it was the original headquarters of Peoples Temple in

living began in San Francisco and Los Angeles.

. charged, It was something the members knew was a requirement if they expected to

California. After S.F. became the headquarters, approximately 70 communal residen-
ces werc organized in that clty alone. Virtually everyone who lived communally
planned on moving to Guyana. Actually, communal living was an understood require-

ment for those who wanted make the move to Jonestown. The members understood that

ecoming a
25736”835533;1 member meant, by its very concept, turning over all of one's financia?

assets, including homes and property. The Temple, in turn, woul? then provide for

" the person's housing, food, medical-dental and educational needs, and living \}\)

‘expenses, such as transportation, clothes, toiletries, etc.

It was through the communal process that the Temple ended up with so much

property. It wasn't a matter of coercing people into giving it, as has been

stay in the Temple and go to Cuyana. Many people stayed in the Temple, right to

the end, who never tithed, much less went communal. And most people who did go

communal had no property or savings to give. The ones who did turn over assets

were given no special privileges. Once communal, everyone lived on the same basic
level. (-71{(\ anCia LSS fo: ) - t‘,or\ NesLrre. A /en,efad/zmz“\;éq ﬂzna’#ﬂ
SR L M««é/ Km“‘- meand Star 11-;7 al? e df-nvr\} afn w/ama,)

In Jonestown, the vast majority of thé pecople loved their new 1ife. They

=X

were building their own community, their own future and their children's, with
their own hands. They:took preat pride in the fact that the Guyana government
considered it a model co-operative project in line with the country's own goals.

Although living conditions were crowded, the people were reasonably comforta-

ble, particularly when you consider that this was truly a ploneering effort.

A sawmill had been bullt for tumber production, and some 70,000 board mcasurement

of lumber was on its way from Georgetown for use in the construction of over 100

new houses,
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Although the food was limited in variety and consisted mainly of vegetables,
cagsava (the main crop), and rice mixed with pork, chicken or fish, it was adequate
in meeting the nutritional nceds of the community. Anyone having a special dietary
need (e.g., protein deficiency, diabetes, pregnant mpthers etc.), was put on an
appropriaté diet. i, personally, was ordering 1000 chickens every three weeks,

a process that was to continue until there was enough production for everyone:to
be served eggstfé} breakfast. In addition, the diet was supplemented regularly
with pork from the piggery and fish which was brought in every two or three weeks
on the Temple's boat. Temple agriculturalists said that we would have been self-
sufficlent in food production withfn a year to a year and a half f}om last October.k\
Thus, despite what some press reports have stated, the land was productive~- it just
took some trial and error to learn how to farm in a tropical climate. Guyanese
agriculturalists who were famflfar with the arca, including visltors from the
government Ministry of Agriculture, were surprised to see the farming achifevement
in Jonestown, Information and techniques were exchanged regularly. Visitors were
particularly amazed at the amount ;f land that had been cleared and either developed
with facilities or put into agricultural-livestock production, in light of the fact
that the project was entirely covered by dense jungle growth when it was begun.
More than one visitor referred to the project as a "labor of love", which is perhaps
the most apt description given to it.

Rordeezes On oh1y one day of the total time period I was in Guyana (which was
a year and three months), did a fight break out in the community, which I find
remarkable consideri{ng the number of members who had been violence prone. (Ironi-
cally, it was twngigth that broke out in that same day-- one of thém was between
two young men who were friends, and the other was between two girls over some petty
difference. The participants, incidentally, were all of the same race.) During
the last five months of Jonestown's cxistence, violence was tot&lly banned from
the meetings, where it had been used on occasion and in extreme cgses, as a last

nearnt’. Maroavon, met srec dedd of toctrass g Au(.ja/u?" nren dd J

L4
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It is sadness beyond tears to think of my brothers and sisters from Jonestown,
hundreds of them, not only unidentified, but still unburied. It is significant

and tragically symbolic that they have laid for so long, in coffins piled-up like

'so many matchboxes, waiting for a final resting place. They are back in their

homeland, but they have no home. Peoples Temple was their only home, their only

family, their only life. They are nameless and alone-- forgotten by America. (\ \JAO
They died courageously--as onc of their sisters wrote--because outside forces

wouldn't let them Jive In peace. Ts 1t any wonder that officials didn't want

them all buried tggothor, fearing their place of interment would become a shrine--

and an all too painful reminder of a tragic American failure., Though I'm white,

whgn I die, T belong with them, for thelr strugple was mine also.
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Mark Lane on KGO AM Propgram  Wed., Jan. Jist.

"There 18 a continuing operation by American Intelligence to focus attention
away from what really happened in Jonestown, away from their role in the murders
of over 900 Amerfceans In Jonestown, onto peripheral questions. And they are using
thelr friends, what they refer to in the C.I.A. documents as our assets at CBS,
our assets at the C.I.A., our assets at the New York.Times, to prevent the facts
from being known."

"I begged Congressman Ryan not to go; T called his office in San Mateo and
asked him not to go: I wrote a letter to him telling him that Jim Jones would see
his visit as a provocation; 1 called Jim Scholar of the House International
Relations Committee and said that if Ryan went down there Jones would see it as a
great provocation-~could they at least put if off for several weeks. I told them

that Jim Jones was very 111 and under the circumstances he would see it as a

~ provocation. Why did they go? 1In the face of those warnings, in the face of the
fact that Debbie Blakey, a high-ranking official who defected from Peoples Temple

in May of last year, went to Richard McCoy, then of the American Embassy, previous
ly with Air Force intelligence for six years in the Office of Special Investigatiohs
of the U.S. Air Force, she went to him and said there are two or three hundred
semi-automatic weapons In there, 25 pistols, a homemade bazooka, the lives of the
people are in danger--they practice suicide. Now she told that to the State Dept.”

"Why did he go? Becausc he went to the State Dept. and Mr. McCoy of Afr
Force Intelligencé, of the American Embassy, and then of the Guyana Desk in the
State Dept., sald it's perfectly safe down there. He knew when he sent Ryan 1in
there, he knew that Ryan mipht be killed. He knew of the mass suicide drill--
that was discussed on radio broadcasts from Jonestown and the FCC during that
entire year of 1977-78, those two years, had monitored the broadcasts from their
Douglas Arizona Proving Station, about this there is no question, the FCC admits
that, McCoy knew that they had practiced mass suicide, Debbie Blakey told him

that, many people had told him that.

What did he tell Congressman Ryan who raised

the question. After all, T had begged him not to go.

I said that it would be

seen as a provocation.

What did McCoy say to him?

McCoy said, "Congressman Ryan,

the only problems you may have down there, you will find the food and housing
accomodations may not be up to your standards. Why did the State Dept. send Mr.
Ryan down there after 1 begged him not to go?"
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It will be a long time before the truth about the Peoples Temple mass

suicides and murders ks fully known,

Vhat 4in certain at this time, at leant accerding to the &% investigatori. in

that at least 775wn, women and children perisked in a single night of horror

in their remots Jungle commune »

¢

The Tmnplc and its membern were wraped in a virtual blanket of necrecy, and

\

the distant location of their apriculturel settlement, Jon-atown, strengthened

their privacy. ' _ . ( v\./

But thia secrecy han follow-d them into death and is providing fortile
ground for upcculntion as to what led to the virtual liqmdution of the spgth
organiantion in the mest_ finnl way.

‘rho grin adjocthea that followed Jim Jones and his peoplep 4in life follew
them into death alsp, and establishgent churches and political -~rganisntions
compete to denounce then. .

Often overleoked $n the speculation is the history pf persecufion against ]
wl;{ch the organiintion protented ﬂ)r many yen.rs.'

The situati{m had reached the tage over the past year or so where virtually

all the ’fomple:s gpare time, and even some that could not be spared’had to be

dedicatedp to cm;mterin;; allcgations from many directions,.

The allegationa. which the Jemple saw an high.presnure ha*ranemont. perginted
even after they were, from to timo. rejected not only by the organiantion but
also by outnidcré‘ dnvited to nce for themselves ,

Peoples Fenple wan, indded, a community of human beings virtually under

seige for many long montha.
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and that they could not fo on in that way forever.

2 ‘
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Tﬁoac who met some of the senior members, includiag the londer

Jim Jonea. could not helP feeling that they exinted with a seipge nmentally

Investigatora are beginning to a&roc that the Jonestown deaths took
place bscause the critical poin*had beeh reached with the vigit by cone
grasenan Les Ryan and the Amorican preaxz, and it was triggered by an attempt to

stab Mr Ryan 4n tho sottlement,

After that)the organisntion apparently fBL@ that there was no use going

on, and a death plan was put 1nto sporation. N
N\

It appears that many of them killod themaelves whilo othars ‘ware forced
to do so. The plan storted with the babiea and young children wvho were &/L
first killed, the investigators beliave, \,

.
\.

¥hat Gauses the&orld to recoil is thia bizarre act of defignce wvhich

the Temple ayagod as the final solution to its problem,

Tie Teaple must have been living for come time with the knowiedge that

one day, the death plan would have had to be put #knto oper:.tion

They would have known that even o they ldved, loveq7reared chiliiron,
v A

and farmsd on the coumunes }\
That is a rather unizue sort of theology. Most religions preach the

. ,-i
celebration of 1ife and the sangtity of life. H

: i
Pecples Temple apparently respected life but was prepared to end it

A}

o
all if necessary, = its last aét of defiance gmainat the perseuction which it

. . ‘ \ <
s8ffered as a noneconformist religions organisation with a leftwing politiocal

ideology.

. [3
It would appenr that, by dying, the Temple, has proved .tm paint, "
The conseience of tho world refusgd to atir vhen the Temple cried ou&

V.
aguinat persecution, -

’ P\ b ombiee

*Ro'. instead of senrching itmelf, the world ds persecuting the Templo
R .

even in d'ntheﬁﬂﬂd—ﬂﬁn&_h«VﬁllhJNWQmﬁvﬁﬂﬁ—ﬁ\x&aﬂﬂﬂnﬂﬁPﬂaftnthegg ! /’jﬁﬂi::&




3

;voazin,deﬂaz&. and some huve begun fresh harrassgent of other groups which

do not conforn,.

The world is still u very long wgy fror the tolerance and understanding
which even the eatablichyent religions preach,

*he self destruction of the Peoples Temple is hardly likely to change

that,

’

Bn€ o% will certainly stand as an eternal monument to it, and of man's (\k/x/
4nhurmanity to man,

The violence which the Peoplos Temple did to itself shomld serve to remind

the world t'at there ure some people always willing to die#or what they belicve

in,

y

.
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. Peoples Tem
P,0. Box 15

, ' San Francisco, CA 94115

April 18, 1978 ) . \

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEAGSE
The following is a transcript of the message read to members of
the press by Harriet Tropp, member of Peoples Temple Agricultural

Project at Jonestown, Guyana, South America. She read the statement

via amateur radio phone patch at Charles Garry's office:

"I am speaking on behalf of Peoples Temple in response to the
grossly false and malicious statements thaé continue to be made about
our community here in Guyana., Individuals participating in a self- (
styled group of "Concerned Relatives' have now threatened publicly /
to hire mercenaries to illegally enter Guyana and use whatever means
necessary, including armed attack and kidnap, to capture relatives in
the Peoples Temple community. These threats were made public in a
California newspaper. Pcoples Temple has already alerted the President\
the U.S. State Department, and appropriate government officials in
Guyana. This group of "Concerned Relatives is a cruel-hoax. If they
have to send mercenaries -- hired guns who will violate laws and resort
to killing and mayhem to fulfill their contract -- then they reveal
the real nature of théir efforts.

"We demand to knbw where the money is coming from to allow them to
hire killers. We also demand that-the media, which has’ shown such eager-
ness to attack our organization, show cqual vchemence in condemning this
criminal effort and its perpetrators. Actuall&, this is not a new tactic
in the move against the Guyana community; armed agents have already been
sent in illegally and have tried to assassinate Rev. Jim Jones and
others, as well as kidnap pecople. Those attempts have Been sucessfully

thwarted. We hope that the public will see the cruelty and evil
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behind the base, nasty motives of these public liars. The people
involved have been brought together and have been given assurances
that they would be backed up in whatever they were trying to do
against Peoples Temple. Their number is very small compared to the
many relatives and parents who are coming here to visit the project.
"Our community is a dramatic expression of our deep desire to
build a meaningful future for mankind through cooperation and sharing
and eradication of class division. Our contribution has been recog-

nized by many, many people who have come to visit this democratic

. cooperative., Teachers, workers, government officials ~-- people from

all walks of life in Guyana, as well as representatives from nations (qu
the Qorld over have come and congratulated us for what i. being
accomplished. They have praised us for the example of cooperative
living and diligent development of this beautiful region.,

"The chairman of the Cuyancse Livestock Corporation, a man who 1is
a member of one of the most important business families in Guyana,
called this project the purest cgalitarian socicety he had ever seen,
a community without elitism. Just this week 35 educators from an b
attending school district, together with a delegation of the most out-
standing students in the entire nation, visited us unannounced and
spent the entire day. Théy were overwhelmed with what we are doing.
We are making tons of friends here. We are building good will. Providing
a constructive pfesence, we can onlf enhance cooperation and counteract
the negative stereotype of North American pcople.

"Our médical department is known far and wide for its excellent
services, and many lives have been saved. We have programs in agri-
culture, livestock devcelopment, a complete school system and a host

of community projects. Just a few days ago, representatives from one
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of .the largest news agencies in the world spent several days with us.
Representatives from other news agencies have been to the project as
well, and have pronounced it a remarkable, impressive achievement.
Within three to four weeks, several relatives and parents who are not

members will be visiting here. They are coming even with a degree of

cynicism because‘they have been approached by this Eommittee. We do
not ask that people who come agree with us; however, these relatives
are not coming with an intention to harass, and so they are very wel-
come, One is the leader of another church denomination.We object to

this small committee of'concerned relatives" because we have firm proof

that all involve& in that group have talked about kidnapping and
mercenaries. That type of element is not welcome by ourselves nor by the (\A‘
people of Guyana,

"Young people here are finding productive, new lives, frec from the
pitfalls of inner city environment that would have caused a large per-
centage of them to become involved in one form of anti-social behavior

or another -- behavior which would have cost the U.S, taxpayers hundreds

of thousands of dollars. We are tired of seeing people and organizations
that are trying to develop constructive alternatives, to build cooperative
lifestyles, being harassed unmercifully, lied about, falsely accused

of crimes, and, in many-cases, brought down. In recent months alone,

there have been several examples of this in the Bay Area.

"Here in Guyana, we have come to build a community“;or a significant
number of people, well over a thousand, who have been hurt, angered,
alienated and victimized by adverse conditions that preQaillin the
declining inner cities of advanced western society. Many who were not in

such desperate circumstances have also come to join us and build because

of the peaceful, natural environment, ideal weather, and the chance to
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serv;. The vast.majority of our members remain in the U.S.

"Finally, we would like to address ourselves to a point that
‘has been raised, it seems, about some statement supposedly issued
officially by Peoples femple whose contents we here are unaware of.
It is supposed to have been to the effect that we prefer to resist
this harassment and persecution even if it means death, Those who
are lying and slandering our work here, it appears, are trying to use
this statement against us. Wec are not surprised. However, it seems
that any person with any integrity or courage would have no trouble
understanding such a position. Since it is clear that the persons
who are plotting so actively to destroy our organization have neither
integrity or courage, we are not at all surprised that they would find
it offensive. Dr. Martin Luther King rcaffirmed the validity of
ultimate commitment when he told his Frecedom Riders: 'We must develop -
the courage of dying for a cause.'" He later said that he hoped no one
had to die as a resﬁlt of the struggle, but, "If anyone has to , let

\
it be me." And we, likewise, affirm that before we will submit quietly

to the interminable plotﬁing and persecution of this politically

motivated conspiracy, we will resist actively, putting our lives on

the line, if it comes to that. This has been the unanimous vote of

the collective community here in Guyana. We choose as our motto:
not like those who marched submissively into gas ovens, Put like the
valiant heroes who resisted in the Warsaw ghettos. Patrick Henry
captured it when he said, simply: "Give me liberty, or give me death."
"If people cannot appreciate that willingness to die, if necessary,
rather than to cohpromise the right to exist free from harassment and
the kind of indignities that we have been subjected to, then they can
never understand the integrity, honesty, anq bravery of Peoples Temple

nor the type of commitment of Jim Jones and the principles he has
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struggled for all his life.

-

"It is not our purpose to die; we believe deeply in the celebration

of life. It is the intention of Jim Jones,and always has been, to light

candles rather than curse the darkness, to find and implement constructive
solutions rather than merely complain about problems. But under these
outrageous attacks, we have decided to defend the integrity of our

community and our pledge to do this. We are confident that people of

conscience and principle understand our position. We make no apologies

for it.
e QUOTHZE S ek

Charles Garry, Attorney: "I have been to Paradise. It's there for
anybody to sce....l saw a community where there is no such thing as
racism....There is no such thing as age-ism....I have never seen so
many happy faces in my life as I did in Jonestown the three days I
was there....Why are those pcople so happy? They are learning a new
social order. They are learning an answer to a better life. When I
3 returned to the States, I told my partncrs in the office that I had
seen paradise, From what I saw there, I would say that the society
that 1s being built in Joncstown is a credit to humanity.”

oK %

Dr. Peter Fernandes,-Chairmﬁn of the Guyana Livestock Corporation
and world traveler: "Jonestown is the purest egalitarian society I
have ever seen." :

% % %

% Dr. Ng-a-Fook, Guyanese Dental Surgeon: '"The Peoples Temple Agricultural
and Medical Mission is. a first-class cxample of community life. I have
never before seen so many pcople of varying races working happily side-
. by-side....I could not help but be impressed.” ’
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“For ] was an hungered
and g gatk me mcat:
1 #ug thirsty

and ye gave me drink;

I #osa stranger
and ye fook mein;
Naked, and ye clothed me;
I was sick and ye visited me;
I wag in prisen,
and ye came unlo me,

“Then shall the nghteous

nswer him, saying,

When saw e thee an hungered
nd fed thee? e
Or thimg.

And gaie thee drink?
hen san' we thee a stranger
And tock thee in?

Or naked, and clothed thee

Or when san' ve thee sick?

1n prisen,
Andcame unto thee?

“Verily 1 say unto you,
Inasmitch ax%c B done it

Unto one of the least of these..

Yt have done it unto me*
Matthew 25:35-40
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_there is a WELL-COORDINATED CONSPIRACY, SEVERAL YEARS

K3 EESTTE A T EOT

Pastor San Francisco, CA 94115

. (&) 922-6418

-’/_-_
August 21, 1977

NEO-McCARTHYITE CAMPAIGN PERSISTS
AGAINST PEOPLES TEMPLE '

The same pattern of smear attacks against Jim Jones and the
Peoples Temple continues. The unsubstantiated charges, exaggera-
tions, misrepresentations, half-truths and outright lies have projected
a portrayal of the church that bears no resemblance to reality.

We know that behind the specific charges that have been made \/\1

——

IN THE MAKING, to destroy an organization that is developing
alternatives to massive institutional failure. We are not alone, by
any means, in being so victimized. We have seen over the years
how the media can be used to silence the proponents of serious
social change, and can work to create a climate of public opinion
that will pressure governmental agencies to carry out persecution in
the form of investigations, indictments, etc., against individuals and
organizations portrayed as a ‘“menace’’ to society. We have even
heard one reporter involved in the campaign against us brag that he
and his colleagues had the power to “‘make monsters” out of indi-
viduals and groups, if they wished.

Much has been written of late about our Guyana project. Now
a bustling, co-operative community of several hundred, the project has
developed recreational, educational, medical and other comrunity
facilities. *We have a plant nursery, and are engaged in athost of agri-
cultural, livestock, and small-scale technology projects. *We are work-
ing in full co-operation with the Guyanese government to develop and
bring vital services and health care to the interior of the newly-devel-’
oping nation. Characterizations of the community in the press as some
sort of ‘‘slave colony' are abominable, outrageous lies. Residents
enjoy excellent health, an abundance and wide variety of wholesome,
natural- foods, and professional medical care. There is absolutely no
‘ruth to stories of “hard l~nor” or aeprivation. Guyanese officials
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and agricultural experts are constant visitors, and the project has been acclaimed by
the government as a model co-operative, the _most successful of its kind in the nation,

Finally, the Temple is not moving its ‘home base’ away from San Francisco, and we
are determined to maintain a strong ministry here in ttis city.

Other reports have attempted to show that Peoples Temple har been made
“wealthy” by individuals who have freely decided to give over houses -nd Jands to
our church. Those who give to the church have done so in accordance with our
religious belief in a community where members hold all things ccmmon, (Acts 2:44-46).
The offerings received into the church are used for the benefit of the total member-
ship, the “household of the faith”. This is not an unusual arrangement within some
churches. All members of the Peoples Temple ‘“household’’ strive to live according to
the same standards.

The disciples of Christ set an ex.mple for a higher form of social organization by
living communally, ard sharing all of their worldly possessi>ni. The church is the
center of our lives, a coemmuiity of love and sharing that not only sustains and nour-
ishes its members, but reaches out in support of good work being done in a variety
of areas. By giving to and participating in the church-community, we are witnessing to
this very basic idea, set forth by Jesus to His disciples. Like any family (and our
church is a large, *‘extended family’’), we have tried to husband our resources, and
have kept funds aside in order to build and develop our work, to provide a decent
future for children who have very little to look forward to in the urban ghettos of
America. Our work has been directed towards building an equalitarian cornmunity
without class or racial distinctions and disctimination, as Jesus taught all people should
live. Our labor to build God's kingdom ON EARTH requires wise stewardship. ‘

In a world where we see greed and materialism driving the human race toward
self-annihilation, we have decided to witness for the truth of Jesus Christ’s mission on
earth by aspiring to live according to His teachings of total equality, sharing, compas-
sion, and love for one another.

We see this as a solution to the crises created by a social order predicated upon
selfishness. Such a social order fosters inequality, poverty, and war, and is therefore
neither capable nor serious about correcting such conditions.

So we are not surprised by the attacks upon cur church. Ckhrist taught a revo-
lutionary faith, and those who live their lives according to His enlightened social teach-
ings, as we are tcld in Scripture and as we know Troin long experience, suffer vecse-
cution.

We hope that our friends in the movement for thoroughgoing justice, for a com-

passionate, caring society, for a decent life guaranteed for everyone, for an end to
racism, will not be swayed by the viciousness of the reactionary attacks on us and

others engaged in this struggle. We are another in a growing number of ‘“‘test cases’”
for neo-McCarthyite forces in America. If such forces can discredit Jim Jones, and
decimate Peoples Temple, they will be emboldened to come after others and will .
gain confidence that they can intirmidate, buy off, or otherwise dissuade those work-
ing for serious social change and economic, racial and social equality. P

We have been extremely gratified by the many, many people who have Been
supportive. We shall continue to resist these attacks, and stand in solidarity with : )
many others who are undergoing similar experiences. WE SHALL NOT BE MOVED.

: | | . @3
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. M1y, 1978

» Notes and reflections on our trip to Guyana, particularly our three
days at the Peoples' Temple Cooperative Agricultural Project.

H

"Impressive" was the first word Lo come to mind when 1 was asked
what I thought of the project. The clearing of more than eight hundred
acres from the midst of the jungle, and the planting of crops is impressive.
To imagine more than a thousand Americans migrating to Guyana and .
working in the project is impressive, Every aspect of the work and life
there I found impressive. )

As we vode into the avea of swthe buildings we saw Annie and Kimo.
Carolyn was quickly theve.
Citizens were engaged in calesthenics under the direction of a young
vomen. We walked to the nursery where infants and toddlers were being
cared for., '

Later in the day, probably early in the evening, we visited the
clinic and talked with Larry (M.D.) who is obviously exceptionally
bright. He showed slides and pictures of some of their work. He has
equipment for cellular studies, tests, and a new portable x-ray.

Two X-ray technicians are there, Two or three nurse practitioners,
with varying specialties, and five or six R.N's (or more) round out
the medical staff. Aunnie, in addition to nursing, is in charge of
medical suppliecs. They provide family planning for members of their
ovn community. Clinfc houra on Sundays for restdents of the region
were posted at the entrance to the Project, however, they treat
people whenever they come.,

They are in instant comnmuication witlp & network of physicians
through amateur radio operators, Larry has consulted with specialists
a number of times, including his delivery of twins by caesarean section.
They have been visited by the president of a medical association which
provides consulatative services by radio, and have his full support.

Two Guyanese dentists have held clinics at the Project. Upon
one occasion the dentist found only two cavities among the children.
This is probably attributable to diet. I think that there are more than
forty pre-schoolers living there, in addition to other children of all
ages, '

The educational program is accredited by the government deparment
of education. I think that they have had,this year,classes through
jr. high, with high school work being offered in the fall., The
teachers are enthusiastic, for they are able to do some of the things
they've always wanted to do in teaching, but have never been free to do.
They make their own educational tools, as well as a variety of play
toys. Classes arc offered for people of all ages including reading and
writing, as well as current cvents, 'The p.a, system keeps the people
abreast daily of cvents throughout the world, Both dramatic and
educational fllms are shown every evening. "fThere lleart Ig A Lonely
Hunter," and a film on the status of women In theSoviet Union were
shown one night we were there, )

Out first cvenlng at the project, a Friday, people gathered
to listen to the band and ¢njoy the entertainment. The band has
performed in Georgetown and has received good press coverage., They
play jazz, soul, rock, cte. A seventy-five year old woman did her
"Moms Mabley" routine, and a preacher the same age sang and danced.

A twelve year old boy sang a solo, A Guyanan from that region brought
Iiis flute, played and sang, 1L was good enter.ainment.,

. for o Meore  Ftrat Unded Thelbedicd Chanch. Rerg
. ¢
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They took us for a walk of the area, SeniorabifﬁﬁuJ
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, Single people live in dormitories while families live in houses. One
older woman wanted her own house, so they constructed a tiny house for
her. The elderly live close in where tley were checked with daily to
ascertain the status of their health, The huildings are simple, with

wood siding and shewt-metal voofs. Throughout Trinidad and Guyana the
roofs were of shect-metal, There was running water in the guest house,
and I presume in the dorms and houses. Showers and toilet facilities
are in separate buildings.

All of the cooking is done in a central kitchen on wood stoves,
Imagine serving three meals a day to more than a thousand people!
People are free to cat in a small dinning area or take their food

wherever they clhoosc. All of the buildings, except where people sleep,
have open sides. Stme of the meceting arcias arc covered with heavy
tenting, still open sided. What {s needed is protection from sun

and rain with structure for circulation of air to keep conl. There

1s not need for fuel for heal. We ate well., Most of the food has been
grown or producced on the land there, They are not producing enough
rice or potatoes for their use, Casava is o tuber which is used for
flower for bread, and 1 suspecet hot-cakes, as well as for feed for
the animals,

They grow casava ( and use both leaves and tubers) custard
apple, citrus, pineapple, cocoanut, bananas, [ think pineapple,
edoesg, cutlass bean and corn, They are still working on dry farming
of rice, (Guyana is a vice exporting naticn,) Starting with 12 seeds
of the winged bean, which is 38% protein, they hope to plant eight

_or ten acres this fall, They produce their on cggs and frying and \/k)

will have modern dairy cquipment.

Their first priority is to become sclf-sufficient, I think that
their major cash outlay is for animal feed, fertilizer, and petroleum
for generating clectricity. Of course they must pay cash for medical
equipment and supplies. They have a 60 foot trawler which they use
to haul in supplics and cquipment to Port Kaituma, and they sometimes
take pay loads, as they do with a truck in Georgetown. One of their
members travels up and down the river engaging in barter.

They have o nutritionist who is engaged in continuing research,

They have found some ways to use plants that he been considered un-

edible, The Amervindians share thelr wisdom with the people about \
foo'! and medicinal herbs. They have their own herb garden, as well

as a gmoke house., They are excatating for underground cold-cool

storage, .

They have a machine shop with a tool and die maker teaching
younger people to do the work of machinists., They have a mill
where they can cut material and erect a house in a day. They
are making furniture and toys. They, of course, maintain all of
their equipment. They arc constructing a windmill which they hope
may help with some generating power,

We heard after we veturned that the President and Prime Minister
of Guyana, and the Prime Minister of Surinam visited the ‘project
unanounced, Officials of the U.S. cmbassy have visited, as well
as officials in the departments of health, education and agriculture,(Guyanese)
The Guyanese have a vital interest in developing the interiwr of the
country, The people live on the coastal nlains, If the Pcoples'

Temple Agricultural Project can become self-sufficient, It hasg
significant implications for the nation as well as similar countries,

1 have never been anyplace where I saw the older people so much !
a part of the community. We have visited P.T.'s Liomes for the elderly,

stewing chickens, as well as pork. They have some cows, and soon (\
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infirm, and retur(’in the U.,S8. Those homes were erior. In
Jonéstown'the elderly reccive superior health care. they work and
rcontribite to the community 1ife as they are able. On woman was
out hoeing her own little garden., Others had picket fences around
their houses. 1 know of no retirement home which provides better
food-and health care and a more wholesome environment. They are
part of a comunity with babies and children as well as of young
people and adults, This fact is a two way street, benefiting the
young as well as the old, When I saw the woman hoeing, I thought
of Micah's words ",..they shall sit every one under his vine and .under
his fig tree, and none shall make them afraid: csss' The fears that are a
part of city life are gone.
The Project has expertise and inexperience. They are proceeding
by trial and error. They have had serious accidents, but no fatalities,
(Jim Jones' mother died and is buried there.) An agronomist, with a
B.S., supervises their farming, They turn to the best advice they
can find in Guyana and outside for assistance. A man from an urban
area is in charge of the piggery. Another man with no experience
is in charge of the chickery. In both instances they have been
successful and are learning. Young people who have never had opportunities
to learn trades or skills are being given these opportunities now.
The morale is high. There is no possible way for this Project
to succeed apart from high morale., No one is paid anything. Everyone
eats the same food and sleeps in comparable quarters. Everyone is
expected to work. Workers were in the ficlds early in the morning.
They do a lot of work with manual labor, even while they are bringing
in some labor saving devices. There is no way they could have done what they L/{}

have done apart from hard work on the part of many men and women.
I was asked by a reporter if I had asked people if they were happy.
AS I thought about that question later, it scemed like asking pcople
celebrating at a party if they were happy, or coming down out of the
stands and asking members of the team who were moving the ball toward
a touchdown if they were happy.
Some parents have charged P.T. with brainwashing their children,
(who are in their twenties and older.)and holding them against their will,
We saw nothing to suggest any truth in this. Furthermore, I am much more
ready to believe that P.T. would expend energy to facilitate unhappy
pcople leaving the Project rather than expending energy to restrain
people., In my judgment, they simply do not have the luxury of using
any energy to restrain and coerce people. They need all of the energy
they can muster devoted to their common task of developing that land
and becoming self-sufficient,

The project is entitled "Peoples' Temple Cooperative Agricultural
Project. The pcople working in specific areas meet regularly, sometimes
daily, to discuss their work. Suggestions and criticisms are encouraged.

The Project provides an opportunity for some Lo use education and
skills, and for others the opportunity to try new things. The man
in charge of the piggery is from Chicago, An attorney is developing
the winged bean and citrus crops. Young people for whom doors in the
city were closed are learning mechanical and agricultural skills,

1 would add to the paragraph on the cooperative the following.
There is a sensc of ownership which is not present under private
ownership. I suspect that this same sense of ownership is often
absent even where the legal ownership is corporate, including the
workers. The people give themselves in hard work, in part: because
it 1s their project. All share the same food and housing. I think
that all spend some time in manual labor.
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I had a fcel‘ that everybody was somebody. l’ought of Israel's
undérstanding of .herself, and later the church's.se (-understanding:
"We who were nobody are now God's peopie." Being somebody is more than
corporate identity., People in the Project give the feeling that they
are somebody, not simply because they identify with the Prr ject, but in
their own right, One woman has the house ‘of her dreams. Other older
people tend their own gardens, sing and entertain. While we were in
Georgetown, an older woman with a speech impediment, perhaps from a
stroke, was waiting eagerly to go to Jonestown, She flew in with us.
That night during the entertainment she was keeping time to the music
with her cane and swaying. A boy of nine or ten flew in with us. He
had been in Georgetown while his artificial leg was lengthened. We
met his brother in Jonestown, He is bent with a disfigured spine. In
the states he knew the ridicule of playmates. Here's there's a different
sensitivity, An accountant is using his experience in the business
affairs of the church. A lawyer is teaching. Young adults who've come

throught the drug scenc arc engaged in signficant work. I think that

it was Dostievsky who said that a society could be measured by the

way it treats people in prison. Surely the humaness of any community

1s to be seen in part by-its inclusion of the children and the elderly,
the {nfirm and thosc of limited abilities.

The project provides of maximization of deep relationships between
people of varying ages, men and women, and of different races,
cultural and class backgrounds, The contribution of the nuclear family
1s strengthened within this kind of a community,

The community has dealt with drug use through negotiation. The
young agreed to abstain from the use of drugs while the adults agreed
to abstain from the use of tobacco and liquor. These drugs are not
a part of the life of the community. )
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Modesto, California newspaper on March 14, 1979.

The attached articles appeared in the "Modesto Bee",
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' EDITOR'S NOTE—The following is' " “English said that while he ahd a
the statement read by Michael Prokes number of others were listening to the
at a Modesto pres’s conference before : *{ape in Georgetown, U.S. Ambassa- (Indicat e of
heshothimself, R {_dor John Burke came into the room new‘::agegaieiiyngd Staten)
FE ey e ST and also listened to it. When it wa} ’
gL e T R 4t finished, Burke told those in the roo:
vy ““Why did Jonestown end the wayit ' in no uncertain terms, that they ha(| {
did? I believe at least a good part of 4 better not breathe a word of what the; ——PAGE A-16
- that answer can be found on the tape . : heard. He then took the tape into his
. :‘gecor%ng ofdtlnlf last holur of life in - personalcustody.* * - - C 7}
* . Jonestown. . Unfortunately, the tape ca T i1 Phe. N :
pas never been played publicly and i o e e the Iavestige. ~——JIODESTO EEE 1
o up by either the -§ b
sty et e e | i Sl s, comialel
. 'But I don’t find that surprising in } " But he went even beyond what. En- MODESTO,CA.
light of what an Americau:pEmbfssy glish sagi. f? k{ng°b§r§f,'gG‘3§3aat,§
. ’ crime chie: m H
. _o{gceft_old mewas or.gthattape. - ' -cénversation,ththe dayhbefoge }1 g:rft ‘
; . « j it , that the tape showed so - —
Riﬁgzt&g:fgme% ocﬂéfedh?gou;‘tzvzg ; [ ﬁ,‘,‘i?{‘fe pe%ple of J%nestom. He said
miles from Jonestown), a young man 3 he was deeply moved by what he

attached to the American Embassy heard. He said that if he were in Jo-

named Charles English (who is 27
years old and had spent one year in
foreign service) described parts of
the tape recording to myself,. Tim
 namesIcan'trecall, .- . Ten

Probably tHe Tost significant thing
.| he said was that he thought the tape
, 1 Wwould never be played publicly be-
. cause it would be an embarrassment
to the United States. He said itreveals
that the people of Jonestown were not
-.coerced into taking their lives, but

- ofthecommunity., - '
- Carter and two reporters whose -

rather the deaths resulted basically

from a collective detision based upon |
the - perception that the community |

was doomed and there was no use to
centinue. . . .. o c4
$ 3 - T e ETEETTR WAL

.

nestown at the time of the deaths, he
could see how he would have willingly
died with the people, had he been part

_ Moreover,he told me he believed
" there was-some outside plan to de-
stroy Jonestown. © - .. ’

. 1 “This was no crackpot making wild | Date:  3/14/79

statements, but Guyana’s No. 2 law | Edition:

. enforcement official, trained by acad-
* ‘emies in ‘th?1 u.s., Wht% tlls h}ghltj;eil;leg_-
. spected and has a reputation for )
g i;la)coi'ruptible. But it’s doubtful that he | Title:

~'...pan admit publicly the things he said

Ay
L4

L
3. ’ )
L-.:. PERREPR SIS LT NG

to me in private. He may (;10 it b‘u!;f it is
touchy political issue. Guyana feels .

i can illafford to offend or embar- | Character:

rass the U.S. while it has an outstand- or

ing IL.M.F. loan and is seeking addi- | Classification:

tional aid. (English, of course, would Submitting Office:

be risking his position to admit what

‘z~,'.. ; N P—..; . i

FBI/DOJ
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“He told us about the'tapé’and Ambas-. %
"'sador Burke,) -. oo ..
<. But if there is nothing to hide then '
“whoever has the tape should be will- ]
ing to make it public. It seems to me
:that a recording of tha last hour of life -
Hor over 900 people is extremely rele-
tvantand crucial for the public to hear.
-” 1have no doubt whatsoever that the
Tecording was made intentionally. It
‘was found on the tape machine in the
pavilion, where meetings were nor-:.
.mally recorded, and where it was in
full view of scores of people. Jones
.asked that all meetings be recorded
and I have no doubt that the last meet-
ing was any exception because I be-
lieve he wanted to leave something |
that would prove why the people died. .;
An article in Rolling Stone magazine
.said it concisely: It stated, “The mass
‘'suicides of history, Masada and Sai-
-pan, had occurred when a people were
under siege and surrounded by ene-
mies. Jones and the people of Jones- |/
‘town were no exception: for months /*
-fhey had been harassed, persecuted,
;purrounded and besieged by shadow ¢
forces. When the final attack was
fmminent and undeniable, they.chose
:'mdie-”"- T ) © 3 .
+ . T believe the tape will corroborate
this, and I am convinced that its con-
tents have not been deliberately mis-"
. represented to the press. Why is it
. being kept locked up? Because-its t
-contents would help to reveal the
truth about Jonestown, that’s why.
-Theé press should demand that the
tape be made public. I'm not talking .
about a transcript, either, because the
-embassy officer (Chas, English) said
a transcript would not give an accu.’
rate portrayal of what was going on —
‘there were to6 many overlapping
“forces. In order to be properly evalu-
ated and undérstood, the entire 50

sSrere s anrie
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&It would take a ot of pressure tor

3 that tape to be played because I be-
dlieve, from the accounts I've bee
iigiven, it would reveal too clearljr

omething that the government doej;
not want to admit, and cannot a
‘mit—that Jonestown .represents a
symbol of the massive institutional
failure of this country to meet the
‘needs of its own citizens. It’s no coin-*-

| cidence that most of the members of

{

£y

1

-
‘3

L.

" and gave the credit to Socialism, The

H

Peoples Temple were black, when you
" consider that most of the inhabitants
of the huge slums and ghettos in virtu-
ally every large city of American are
black. They don’t like living in misery
and if they could get out they would,

. but they aren’t being provided-the
. -opportunitiestheyneedtodoso. .

_That’s why so many blacks joined
Peoples Temple — it provided the .

* opportunity to escape the misery of .

their Jives in the ghetto. Jim Jones
jumped into the vacuum created by
the failure of this system to meet the
needs of its black people. He then met
- those needs that had been neglected -

U.S. Intelligence apparatus would .
»-obviously feel duty-bound to stop him, .
-particularly in the light of their histo- ,
 ry and reputation for going after pro- -

s
¥
]
B

F&ad Breﬁdﬁéls;de‘ni.;& them! But at-
{tempts to .deny Temple members . »
+ their newfound freedom — and to us'it A s tne oppressar.

; gressive political and civil rightsf.

3

Jpreganizations..

L’Beyond the satisfaction of their}
material needs, people found dignity
*{ind pride in the Temple that racism

e e o e e Al e

4

yw -r.—ﬂ:n“rav—x 'n:—\-v ‘7;.-:;:- L S
be destroyed or broken up by the long

. What I'm saying is that the reason

iwas freedom —. still persisted even

S0 many people died and took their

minutes of the original tape should be + after the move was made to another children’s lives i :
_played to the press, unedited, and ;reountry. And that's why so many lieiredechixl'l ‘ég;xgu%tc;uiethtgiyﬂl? .

uncensored. (The Guyanese were F1chose to die in the end. It was a moral had built with their own hands— 335(

provided a copy of the tape by Ameri: ract of courage and commitment to ynder siege by the United States s

fcan officials, but it may not be the their beliefs. They - were saying, e : ; Bov-
S 2 s » ernment, wh
esame one Skip Roberts heardzy——— . ! .W’e re not going to take any more, _‘case. The -S{aég%gpfﬂfs" ‘e,,e‘ﬁfng .
giq 11 die by our 0@ hand 1.'at.her than ) of t.he 'Temple’s negot%ations toymove -
49
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. - to the Soviet Union in order to escape

Y KYSE T

the threats to its security in Guyana,*

" Undoubtedly, the State Dept. and the
- CIA. wanted to prevent a tremendous
~Soviet propaganda victory based on

. nearly 1,000 Americans moving to thé-

> Soviet Union in quest of the Human
+ Rights théy had been denied in the
- U.S. But to what lengths was the State
. Dept. prepared to go to'discredit Jo-
“.nestown? Would they sacrifice a con-

Fgressman? - Evidently. Otherwise,
why did they allow. Congressman
Ryan to go to Jonestown when the
?were told in a legal affidavit-tha

1ithere was arms there and they kne
{/the visit would be considered an acto
provocation. Why did they allow it?
‘Because the State Dept. wanted an

.thanthey bargained for, since the affi-
davit also told of suicide rehearsals —
and warned the State Dept, that they
should be taken seriously. Moreover,

11 inaletter from Peoples Temple to the «

State Dept., it was stated that Temple -

members would rather die than be

: harassed from continent to continent. .

i The State Dept. purposely called the
. bluff by sending Ryan; it was a delib- .

1 erateact of provocation. .- . .. . .

i T believe in the basic rightness of
the life and work that went on in Jo- .
nestown, and I can’t disassociate .

;myself from the people who died, nor _

#do I want to, They were beautiful,
jpeople who cared about each other;
#and who identified with all people who

suffer oppression and persecution|

. around the world. Jonestown func- .

tioned on a high level of ethical behav-

ior and human devotion that you had
. to see and experience in order to
. comprehend. The rights of the indi-
. vidual were respected and defended;
- sharing and concern for others was a
" requirement, These things weré likea

. code of the community. The people

. weren't brainwashed fanatics or cult-

. ists — the Temple was not a cult. It

» Wwas a political organization that built

* its own socialist community, It might

i be.fair to say they were fanatical in -

i one sense: after moving 6,000 miles to

! "get away from racism and harass-

}

{

oo e

. ment, they weren't going to be pushed .

~around any more. Maybe it sounds -

, trite, but they were saying basically -

the same thing as Patrick Henry, that _
is, “Let us have our freedom, or we ’
willdie” - 3 T .. d

s

50

Jincident. Well, they got it. I'm not .
' i"even convinced that they got more

| 'States find freedom in another land, !

ina and deliberately played upon the

Buf the State Department and CIA
couldn’t afford to let such a large :
group of socialists from the United .
So they harassed us by sending thei
lackeys, through Tim Stoen, to Guya

3

; parfanoia that existed in Jonestown, ’
until they finally got what they, want-r'

ed.-. : :
~ The truth about Jonestown is being!
covered up because our government: ,
agencies were involved in its destruc-*
tion up to their necks. I am convinced
of this because, among many other |
reasons, I was an informant when I °
first joined Peoples Temple. I didn’t
‘remain one, however, because I came _
to realize that the Temple was proba- "
bly the only hope for the many people .
it was helping off the streets, off of ™
-drugs, out of crime, and out of mental
institutions, jails, and prisons. I -
learned to identify with these people
until they became my brothers and
‘sisters and then I understood what it _
s meant to be black and old and poor in =
»this society—the hell of living every- *
‘dayinfear. e

;. 'The'people of Jonestown died—as ,
rone suicide note said—bécause they £
weren't allowed tolive in peace. They °
.died because they didn’t want to be _
left with no choice but to come back to
live in the rat-infested ghettoes of °
America, They died for all those who
suffer oppression. I'refuse to let my *
black brothers and sisters and others _
~in Jonestown die in vain. -




-y varwe s

.
A

blea

under house arrest in Georg

o from ol detention and stopped o talk with a young

e §

P SRR LA

A ",%ﬂ&w;{;\&&“ﬁ
G RO T e S L LR

etow

-

,Gu

(N gty ]
Sl ey
e

S

Ao MR TRE ST, :ﬁq&“"}

& N 5SS, et N

PR AN

e RN T & L&
ik %‘n{‘%@lf’& t5

%

L

e
O RIS

%
el
355 ?’3‘%45?%«
“V@E;fg»&
.M\'ﬁ::;‘%&w

B
e AN
s

PR

P

AN

A

2 l‘m i
3

- . o

/ana, ‘Prokes was allowed o walk the streets after his

Boo hoto by J. Robert Bazemore

Y

boy. «~igw 3% By BEeol . w




> - ew—avuY § AV IO

3
x

mmm,

’ﬁ?ﬁ@%@ﬁmﬁ

I V2 YU SN P PSP S SURNTR T T TR NN s,

~—— s
T LR S

l
| SR r

1: Many Modestans knew Mike Prokes from the days he
ew up and went to school in Modesto.
?And many other people in the Stanislaus area came to i
lEnuw him as a television newsman who worked as the ,

;l"":fv' Wy e

{itockton bureau chief for KXTV, Channel 10, in the early
19705

Late last year, he became known to a nationwide audi- |

i .ence as one of the surviving top aides of the Rev. Jim

. Jones after the Jonestown bloodbath in the Guyana jungle

* ‘which left Jones, more than 900 of his followers, Rep. Leo,
i Ryan, and three newsmen dead in November. ! [ﬁ
?

[ © Now Prokes, who followed Jones in hfe, has chosen to
ffollow him in death :
?

Prokes was bornin Modesto in 1947 He was a 1965 grad-
ate of Davis High, where he was a four-year, honor stu-
ent and member of the football team. He attended Modes-
to Junior College, then earned a bachelor of science degree

3o RPN L owSNUCsUls WE L Y LB JSTUGY Wied PR

Ce— e TR T Y S Sr o

'\* .
Sqin commumcatmns from Cahforma State Umversxty, Ful-
ertonin 1969.

He began .working for KXTV in 1970 and left in 1972

lyhm'tly after doing an interview of Jim Jones. - -

His former colleagues at the television station described -
lum as quiet, stable and sensible, His friends in high school -!
had talked of his good nature and sense of humor.” .-

“If anything he was quiet and very conservative,” said
Dale Muratore, a close friend who was one of the few to .

. keep in contact with Prokes after high school.

Family members described him as deeply religious. He
initially was a devout member of the Christian Science
faith and had been elected reader for the Second Church of
Christ, Scientist in Modesto, the top post in a local church.

Late in 1972, after a news interview story, he personall {
turned to Jones and the Peoples Temple, apparently fee
ing Jones and his social beliefs offered a stronger message
tothose in need of help = Y

| S . °‘.h«-’.'= . . - .
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Servmg the Peoples TempTe, he turned hxs communica--
tions abilities to public relations, handling correspondence
and media contacts for the temple -

o One of his friends in Modesto said Prokes fell under the
¥ spell of Jones, even though Prokes knew Jones was not
really that religious. Jones was using religion to get
< enough followers to force social justice in this society,
Prokeshad explained in one of several letters tohis friend.

*» Thefriend described a meeting with Prokes in 1976, say- /! i
-ing Prokes was “frightened — everyone involved thh the;!
. Peoples Temple was frightened.” .. ) i

But Prokes remained loyal to Jones When he was ar-
rested by Guyanese authorities following the killings and
i suicides, Prokes and two other temple members were
farmed with pistols and were carrying $600,000. They said
they were told to deliver the money to, the Russxan em-
¥ bassy mGeorgewwn,Guyana .

L5k ";‘3!{')3.0{-\“4".‘- J'MA A ../ J-& Ul

.. :‘\-.. i

»r w'&‘s(?"“:-"rﬂ $3t

o wBe AdS. A i’uN» Hiwe wka’&. &ix«»u’..\ Eavrs Yo

Prokes had adopted a young black boy as his son and
mamed a temple follower to give her chxld not hxs.

. name. They all died in Jonestown, ;- .. --

- After being jailed for four days, Prokes was released but
told not to leave town. Instead, he escaped Guyana dur-
ing December, without official perraission, to fulfill a
promise to his famlly to come home for Christmas, "

In January he was called to appear before a federal .

LI L

- e tepeine

grand jury in San Francisco which is investigating wheth- .

er a conspiracy hatched in the United States led to Ryan’s’.

murder. For the most part, he took the 5th Amendment,

. answering only questions as to his name, age and address

as well questions about his attorney, he said.

Prokes was the son of Mary-Prokes of Modesto, Other -

survivors include two brothers, Tom Prokes of Modesto

and Jim Prokes of Sacramento and two sisters, Mary

ﬁe;tg Rasmussen of the Fresno area and chkle Prokes of
esto. crnl
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| Fﬁ‘aeﬁodﬁjshocked;??..

e

P e rten vy o

on learning of

Prokes sumde

By'l‘horneGmy
. Deestafiwriter - .. .*

um S AERA

: News of Michael Prokes suicide
came as a shock to Michael Carter,
"who with Prokes and Carter’s brother
Tim left Jonestown carrying more
than $500,000 in U.S. money addressed

to the Russian Embassy tn George- :

town, Guyana, : -

“I'm in shock. 'nns isthe worst I'
felt,” said the the younger Carter
brother, now 21, from the apartment
% Boise, Idaho, where he hves wlth

lm - v

"Wewere friends . Mxke exp Iained
“J didn’t think he woulddothts W

He explained he had been talking

with Prokes about writing “some kin
of a book” about Jonestown and Guya-

ng, Tge project never got off the

81'0

But the last time 'l'im talked to
Prokes was onlmo weeks ago. Mike
planned to call Prokes the past sever- °
aldays, but “didn’t geta chance.” -
- The Carters and Prokes were ar-
‘rested by Guyanese authorities sever-
"al days after Rep. Leo J. Ryan was
killed with three newsmen and a Jo-

nestown defector on the small airstrip™

near the Jonestown settlement. .
The Ryan murder triggered the’
mass suicides in which 913 of the Rev
Jim Jones’ followersdied. . -
Among them were Tim Carters
‘wife, Gloria, and son, Malcolm, 15-
months Mike Carter’s wife, a black,

and a daughter and thexr smter. Ter-'

rieCarter, 4. -
The brothers spoke of a “strange
mixture” of fundamental Chnshamty

'.x......'....-a.ui...x M easlt Bidh bn e Ty

g e w2 el T N SN A A i, mevae ¢ wge

t“"

and Marxxsm. accordmg to reports
from Paul B. Rogers of the Idaho
Statesman from Georgetown where
he interviewed the Carter brothers on
.ahotel veranda, -

He said they spoke of ] troubled
childhood. Tim had been a Marm
radioman in Vietnam, et

. changed his life, Tim claimed, and fo

home in 1967. The Vietnam W, J

a time he was lost, a wanderer, unti

he heard about Jim Jones and the -
Peoples Temple from a black woman :

he met in Sparks, Nev. ~

Tim hi
Temple in San Francisco in January.
1873. Soon he persuaded Teme to jom
him, then Mike, -

Rogers reported 'I‘un was sent to
San Francisco in the weeks before
Rep. Ryan made his visit to Jones-
town, to infiltrate parents who were
agitating to free their cluldren from.
Jim Jones.

He claimed he went to see if anyone
was plotting to assassinate Jones, and
-said he had been present dunnx five
previous attempts on Jones' life,

Tim returned to Jonestown .three
“days before Ryan arrived to report
the parents were out to get Jones. The
leader almost went berserk, Tim
Carter recalled in the mterview with
‘Rogers. ~ -

But during the Ryan visit t0 Jones-
town, it was Tim who jumped forward
-¢o pull a knifer attacker way from.
Ryan, saving the congressman for the
moment. . L Sw— .

fave . .
PP 955 .s.—t&ll -AB’\ .
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ed a ride to the Peoples :
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" When Ryan left Jonéstown, -all - Watched as’their wives and bable
seemed well. Then word came of § died, then were tapped to carry th
Ryan’s murder, Jones called his peo- |} Suitcase of money from the compound-

iple to the pavilion and the mass sui- ff WithProkes, -. ~ 7 - .- 4§

* cides bfgan. The Carter brothers ! = Mike Carter refused to talk about -
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¢ that episode, noting he and his brother ,
g.remain under federal restrictions i

Their father, M.L. Carter of Garde
City, Idaho, said the brothers testifie,
'E ‘briefly before a federal grand jury in’

L S S P, S Yl I

F investigation of Ryan’s murder, °

LT TR M AleeaA S | Bvean e

“San Frandisco in fanuary. i
. in Jan , Just ¢
:daysaftgerkesappe:raerg. }‘ . wo
- In Guyana, Prokes and the Carterd’

:i;gt; .jaillled ﬁmr days, then rel
: Iinally allowed to leave the cound'
c.try in late ember' et N 4
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Er. Byl RobertBazemore
P Beestattwriter -
> Jonestown survivor chhael Prokes
Fg};gé and fatallly wounqlf‘ed hldtgse:lfigulx1 : '
esto motel room Tuesday
knearly four months after the mass ——MODESTO BEE
Fsuicides of Peoples Temple followers
‘ianuyg.nath hi h ed be
n a death whic appear to as
: cooly planned as those in Jonestown, —MODESTO, CA( M /

rene ns

: Prokes put a .38-caliber revolver to
*the left side of his head moments after ’
. he stepped into the bathroom. Eight
_tembers of the press were attending

;& press conference. m the adjommg
u'oom. :

--It was the first death ofa Peoplea
Temple membeér since 913 persons
. died Nov. 18 in the Guyana massacre.

i A psychiatrist who counseled a num-
ber of the survivors in Georgetown,

the work of his former leader Jim _
Johes, He died nearly three hours
later at Doctors® Hospital.  The state-
ment claimed the Unitéd States was
3 ‘engaged in a conspiracy to eliminate —_—

' ; Guyana, before their return to the - xlge Peoples Temple settlement in
: - United States and has set up a pro-- ; 5 ;Jonestown, . . LK :
7 gram to help them in the bay area. 7. Prokes left a suicide notd ‘in the ]
¢ predicted there would be suicides = bathroom of the room he rented in the -
, amongthesumvors.. ot - Kansas Avenue motel where heisolat- | Date: 3/14/79
Prokes, 31, shot himself at 7:18 - ed himself for the shooting. In it, he | Edition:
f ., immediately after he read a ; said he didn't kill himself over de-
engthy fxve-page statement praising | ~‘.‘spondency about Jonestown because
R e Fiuhies “‘he could live with that. He also said he
ESWH IO P REE ,.dxdnothllhxmselfbecausehewas Title:

o~ S ‘programmed.” se—ieko’:
!’ “The last sentence in the’ page-long
“guicide ~note said, “If my .death
. doesn't prompt another book about { Character:
ﬁle endof Jonestown, 1t wasn't worth “or
iving.”?-7: * AR Classification:
, Seemingly in good spmts ’Prokes -
ted sgnx television newspersons | Submitting Office:
g:e three Sacramento-based televi-
r sion stations, and a reporter and pho-
nographerfmm The Modesto Bee. = b

5

gv Before the press éonference, held ln
-ta room at Motel 6, he had promxsed w
é make a major statement. -
.
i,

prtveeth g ‘: :
Just priortothe 7p.m. pmseonfer-
-ence, Prokes told The Bee he was "4
= going to make a telephone edll,“He.
% walked into the small motel room a
f ew minutes after 7, entered the bath- ro1/00s
) om .and emerged to take*hxg_plaee .
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* ments to KCRA television reporter

P e e A R T N ;.-;""
behind two microphones and two tape

recorderson a small table, -

statements with
voice for emphasis. He sipped water
from a styrofoam tup, got up and
handed B large envelope of state-

Kent Pierce to distributé to the oth-
ers. . . T . - .. -~
Pierce asked Prokes if Jones or- ,
dered the killing of Rep..Leo Ryan.
Without answering the question,

. Prokes walked toward the bathroom

¥

s

and ¢losed the door. As he closed the
door, he pulled a plug on one of the
television lights. Prokes said, “I'm
sorty to leave you guys in the dark,”

He planned the press conference on
Monday after a visit to The Bee. He

He read from a 42-page package of had asked to hold the press confer- .
ections in his ~ ence in the office of the newspaper, _.

but was told that would not be appro-
priate if other news media were to be
inVited. e me s T e PR
Even after repeated pleas, Prokeg
refused to discuss the nature of what
he would say at
ence. His only statement was, “You
willhave a headline.”. ,... .

~

», af N

After he made the arrangements"

for the motel room Tuesday morning;
e telephoned the three television

the press confer-l

'stations, Rich Ibarra, a reporter for -
FKOVR of Stockton-Sacramento, said
 the person who took Prokes’ call quot-

~

¢

s enVIE Y LR BN RIT AN LI Y

ed Prokes as saying he would “drop a
bombshell” at the news conference.
. During the weeks after the Jones-
town massacre, while Prokes and
some 80 other survivors were de-’
tained in Georgetown biithe‘ Guya-
nesé government, psychiatrist Dr.
Hardat A.S. Sukhdeo visited an
falked with the survivors. - .
Sukhdeo is a native of Guyana an
currently is chief of psychiatry an
deputy chairman of psychiatry at the
New Jersey Medical School. .
It was Prokes whom the psychia-
trist had told The Bee was despondent
and could be a candidate for suicide.
Sukhdeo and this reporter talked with

mental state and

N}
Y

N S LR
TR R

Prokes about his ) ( \Al

He tossed the cord out and another

reporter turnéd the room lamp on. ~
Prokes turned on the water in the sink
and no more than 15 seconds later the -,
eight‘i;:.‘:spersons fn the room heard .
a tuxsmgri for & moment the reporters i When told Prokes had shot himself
looked around. “My GOd, he ‘hot ( Tuesday night, Sukhdeo. saxd, f‘It'
himself,” said Pierce. -* : one thing to make predictions and it's

. RS 2,
Two television cameramen pushed j; anothertosee them cometrue.” .
i i . " Heexpressed regret that Prokes did
the door open. Pierce and this repart ¢ not contact him after returning to the

N S e s '»‘;.:'.".‘:,‘
i+ Divk SEUIASORNANAY RO L am

(St < atet £33
.

I

Ay LY >4 . ~

S

Prokes said he was fine and Would
“keep his head together.”: :

erP“rlf;ll::sd lvl;sa;d%rumpled on the floor + . United States and that his efforts to
with a .38-caliber revolver with a 2- ' ] %Oh Pmtl;eie%atd been Emucclfsgrﬁﬁl.
“inch barrel lying' - +. When contacted two weeks ago by The
Y him,, . l lymg op'tla.e ﬂoornext to : it Bee, after a visit to California, Spk-
) “There was a massive head wound : hdeo asked that Prokes cail him.

i Prokes’ mother was advised as was
% Prokes. The message wasrepeated o
Monday when Prokes said he plann

on the right side of his head above the .
ear and a lesser wound on the left
side. Reporters grabbed face cloths ™

oAU AT

: v : apress conference. .1 . .. .
f’h‘:’; :u;adcsk ﬂgtﬁgfliggoﬁgsr“:ﬁ g T But it was not just Prokes who Suk{
; telephone an ambulance and the po- T e e B W2
7 Prokes continued to breath heavily .
¢  and this reporter asked if anyone had

. CPR’ (cardio-pulmonary. resuscita-
tion) training. No one replied. Prokes’
. pulse remained strong but his breath- .
g began to cease. This reporter .
administered mouth-o-mouth resus-
am ,. . i ‘:“ o ) R .
Several mimutes later two teams of
paramedics arrived and tookover. |
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4 East Coast psichiatrist has set upa were in a better frame of mind than’ .
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¢ hdeo said he ‘was worried about. The ~ that at that point Tim and Mike Carter
ycenter in Berkeley to help Peoples Mike,” the psychiatristsaid. -.. . = °

. b

cTemple gurvivors move back into  He said he had wanted to get in

teociety. - : - = touch with Prokes. “If I had I might _

“I was quite upset at seeing' what I - have been able to make an impact. ..>"

%,

’ redicted in San Francisco. People. Idon’tknow. : ™ : B
tyere in a much more serious state.f _ “‘There are others I'm just as much *
¢

ey were not coping in the Unitedi{ concerned "about. Some I have not.

tates society. They do not have the| ‘se¢n and others I have seen. And I'm | i

nancial and psychological support,”? still worried. ‘My opinion is as life .
yhesaid,” - - -x ~ _ ... .. becomes more difficult this will be
+ Sukhdeo revealed that he pre-’ onewayoutand maxbethe easiest, "}
heribed antidepressants and sléeping |- *‘Like I have said in the past they .
;pills to Prokes while he was in’ Geor-. . were all programmed for suicide and ’
Eﬁatowpby giving them to his cpmpan- ~this will be the easy way out,”:the
lon, Tim Carter to administer. “1felt psychiatristaddd. ; 3p'wapizss , o f

- - 2.
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(Mount Clipping in Space Below)

Pro%’es hod

',.<~¢

no chance -

[ P

for survival.

ByStevenPaulMotenkQ o

o o &.44
S BeckyMcClure AR
L B Bee'staft writers - - iokavid

. Wiichael Prokes was pronounced,
dead at 10:35 p.m. Tuesday in Doc-
tors’ Hospital, the victim of a self-in;
flicted gunshot wound through the left
‘temple. - e
Prokes sumved ;ust more than |
three hours after shooting hunseli‘
.during a press conference .at a-
Modesto motel. ““The only part of his
brain not destroyed was the breathing \
i center," a hospital spokesman said. - -
i; The Beelearned that a decision wag
¢ made not to conn kes to any hfe
.support systems. NS

tors '“Ambulance ' paramedics’
elivered Prokes'to the hospital emer-
’gency room at 7:43 p. m., only minutes
‘after he shot lnmself ina mot,el room
throom. « i5:2a..10

3*_ Paramedics said Ptokes was “eg-
g‘sentxally dead” when they arrived at
,ythe motel. They said . he stopped
{‘breathing on his own _in the ambu-
“lance but began breathmg again with-

amved at the hospital.: cimicas

“"m-m-f-

-Fragments of the smgle bullet were
t sald to be scattered throughout his
bmm..;--. R L
#  Prokes was transferred from the

0w

emergency room to a private room at -
 9:45 p.m. after’ doctors decided his
. condition was irioperable and in the
‘. words of hOpr spokesmen “ex-
tremelycntx\.al Mo e
The transfer to the room was under-
i taken quickly while reporters and
-icamermen were dxverted to 8 press
bnefmg L
Eight emergency rdom petsonnel
surrounded ‘the gurney “on which
* Prokes_was transferred, -his head
swathedmwhste bandages. & .- -
- Prokes’ older brother, Tom. who
< lives in Modesto, was at thé hospital.
. He spent much of his time trying to
‘i contact other family members who
E wereout of town.

Jim Prokes, Michael’s younger
brother, -arrived .at the hospital .at,

63 £10:10 p.m. from Sacramento, Prokes’ :

mother had been with Jim and report-’
AR b et L Bas

o st A

£ e o

out the aid of a respirator after he te

(Indicate page, name of
newspaper, city and state.)
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% edly returned to Modesto, distraught, who did not wish to be identified, said
g;but did not go to the hospital. ] justhearditon TV; I've known him

- meas s e gles avd emew) WPes s

“There will be no statement until for a long time.” He added he had not!
§the family has worked through its seen or talked to Prokes since his
+ grieving period for a beloved member . returnfrom Guyana. R i)
, of our family. Wearea very close-knit .. +At 9:20 p.m. hospital officials re-

: family,” Jim Prokes said through a " "ceived a call from Tim Carter in Ida- u{
, hospitalspokesman. 1 < --.- ho, whohad escaped from Jonestown
1. Tom and Jim Prokes were at théir § with Prokes. While waiting to talk to
. brother’s bedside when he was pro- | Tom Prokes, Carter told The Bee that
;nounceddead.. SN he had just gotten home and heard
;- Prokes’ sister, Victoria, was vaca- { about what happened. Carter would.
. tioning in Yosemite National Park notanswer questions, saying he would.
, and could not be immediately contact- have to check with his attorney before,
. ed. She called the hospital about 10:30 ‘talking to the press because of a
; p.m. saying she had just heard about federal probe into Jonestown, But he_
;. herbrother, . 2~ . . was full of questions about Prokes.:
;. When word spread around Modesto  “‘How is.he? How did it happen? Can
that Prokes had shot himself, friends  you give me the scenario?” he asked. .
ﬂ began arriving at the hospital. Most “I understand from my brother that é

|'were solemn and composed, but one Bob (Bazemore, Bee reporter) was:
. young woman was crying. One friend, the first one there, is that right?” .
L’ ' » . . ‘.n--'.- SOre . TENSL ad ANt s et --"h:’l'u! —-n: P AR e A e
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